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Brand Vision:
RS

Being a fashionable fitness brand caring people’s
well-being and health.

MEE AP S L RENR RS @8

Brand Mission:

fm R R A
Represent and promote an active life attitude.
FEMEE —EERR LR EERE -

Brand Purpose:
mMERE
Influence the World with fitness.
AR EHR -

Operation Concept:
RreEER

Integrity, Practical, Professional, Innovative.

s BEBX A

Brand Objective:
mhEE R

First brand in the indoor sports industry.
ENEHE—mE
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Corporate Information
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Board of Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Shi Hongliu (Chairman)

Mr. Shi Hongyan (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong

Mr. Zhao Yan

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Ms. Ko Yuk Lan

Mr. Sun Ruizhe

Mr. Yao Ge

Board Committees

Audit Committee

Ms. Ko Yuk Lan (Chairman)
Mr. Sun Ruizhe

Mr. Yao Ge

Nomination Committee
Mr. Yao Ge (Chairman)
Mr. Sun Ruizhe

Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong

Remuneration Committee
Mr. Yao Ge (Chairman)
Mr. Sun Ruizhe

Mr. Zhao Yan

Registered Office
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong
Room 4105-08, 41/F

Sun Hung Kai Centre

30 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Headquarters and Principal Place of Business in China

Huashan Industrial Zone
Shenhu

Jinjiang

Fujian, PRC

Postal Code: 362246

Authorized Representatives
Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong
Mr. Lai Ho Man Dickson

Company Secretary
Mr. Lai Ho Man Dickson (CPA, CTA(HK), FCPA, MBA)
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Stock Code
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(listed on the Stock Exchange
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Principal Bankers
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Bank of China (Hong Kong)
China Construction Bank
Wing Lung Bank

Auditor

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8/F, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road Central
Hong Kong

Legal Advisor

Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe
43/F, Gloucester Tower
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Website
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Financial Highlights
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For the year ended 31 December/ HE12A31BLEES Change (%)
As at 31 December MW12A31H 2011 2010 8 (%)
Financial highlight (RMB million) BERBEAREEER)
Turnover EEE 695.2 347.8 99.9
Gross profit E A 432.6 169.4 155.4
Profit before taxation B 5 B A E 315.7 108.8 190.3
Profit attributable to T 75 BRR JE A ) B
equity shareholders 2731 116.1 135.2
Earnings before interest, tax, BRFE B -TER
depreciation and amortization A AR 323.5 118.8 172.3
Total equity attributable to R R E G ERERE
equity shareholders 877.2 297.4 195.0
Total assets BWEE 1,043.8 533.4 95.7
Financial ratios B 7% b =&
Net debt to shareholders’ fund (%) FERFERRE © K (%) Net cash
BRS 183 N/A/TEA
Interest coverage (times) T BB~ R (F80) 205.4 18.0 1,041.1
Financial information per share BERyEER
(RMB) (AR®T)
Earnings 2 F 0.22 0.10 120.0
Dividends % B 0.07 | N/A/ TR N/A/ T
Equity attributable to equity holders ERFAAEGER 0.55 0.25 120.0
Turnover Total assets
gfj@g@u@_) (RMB gi//igg)ﬁ
i B&T 695.2 (1A21§O B&ET)
' 1043.8
600 1,000
500 800
400 347.8 600 533.4
800 204.6 360.3
200 159.2 400 210.7
100 200
- N
2008 2009 2010 2011 2008 2009 2010 2011
Net Profit Equity
#F Pz
(RMB milion) (RMB million)
(ARIEEET) (AREEET)
300 273.1 1,000 877.2
250 800
fgg 600
b 116.1 400 297 4
50 29.0 28.7 200 91.9 120.6
N e P
2008 2009 2010 2011 2008 2009 2010 2011
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Key Financial Ratios

+ 28 =X

Financial ratio B 7 b & 2011 2010
Profitability ratios BFIgE L=
Gross profit margin EF =X 62.2% 48.7%
Net profit margin before interest and tax f A B N B8 B E R E X 45.6% 33.1%
Net profit margin pERRINE B 39.4% 27.1%
Return on equity HE 2 O 3 X 46.5% 55.5%
Return on total assets 428 0] 7 K 34.6% 26.0%
Liquidity ratios RBESL R
Current ratio MRS 5.86 timesfZ 1.97 timesf&
Quick ratio RENLE XK 5.26 timesfZ 1.75 timesfi%
Stock turnover days FERA#EAH 105.3 daysH 122.6 daysH
Debtors’ turnover days JE W BR SR A 8 A 2 103.5 daysH 99.0 daysH
Creditors’ turnover days FETAR FRA 5 B & 119.9 daysH 113.4 daysH
Capacity adequacy ratios EXFTREL R
Gearing ratio BfELE - 18.5%
Debt to net worth ratio BB FELLE 7.1% 59.2%
Interest coverage (times) ) BB = (fZ80) 205.4 timesf& 18.0 timesf&
Others Hith
Net debt to shareholders’ funds FEBHERRERES L X Net cash
FES 18.3%
Gross Profit Margin Net Profit Margin
ERZE FEFER

% %

. 6.2 20 39.4%

60

o0 48.7% 30 27.1%

40 39.5%

30.4% 20 18.0%

30 13.8%

20 10

10

2008 2009 2010 2011 2008 2009 2010 2011
SEDBIRBRAR 20114F% OS5









Chairman’'s Statement

TREHSS

Mr. Shi Hongliu, Chairman & Executive Director
MR, gxrssrEs

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the
“Board”) of Hosa International Limited (the
“Company’). | am pleased to present the
annual report for the financial year ended
31 December 2011.

08 HOSA International Limited Annual Report 2011

KAZRREDERE
RARI(ARAARNDESS
[EEE))MAREEEZE
2011512 A31H 1k Bf B &
BRI ER o



Chairman’'s Statement

TRHES

Forward —=

The year of 2011 was definitely a memorable year for the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”). Our team made tremendous strides to
achieve excellence in all areas of our operations and the financial
performance of the Group outperformed our projections. Our turnover
increased by 99.9% from RMB347.8 million for the financial year ended
31 December 2010 to RMB695.2 million for the financial year ended 31
December 2011 while the net profits increased by 135.2% from
RMB116.1 million for the financial year ended 31 December 2010 to
RMB273.1 million for the financial year ended 31 December 2011.

The financial performance of our Group was consistent with China’s high-
speed economic growth when the country’s domestic consumption
sector became a focus of the economy. The Group is taking the
opportunity presented by China’s rapid growth given the rise in the living
standards and spending power of the general public in China, continuing
urbanization, increasing popularity of yoga and fitness regimes originated
in western countries, heightening awareness of health and complexes
such as indoor swimming pools, stadiums and other similar sports
facilities.

i =N

=
i]l[2

HRARQRBIRENWNB R (HBAIASE
B)mE 2001FERE —HESLSN
FH - AEBNEBRDRBEXRES  EMAE
LEBEKREN  ANEBNMFERAB
HIEE - REBEAE EFBEREE2010F12
ASTHIEEHHFENARKI478EH BTG
N99.9% = & £2011F12 8318 It BT B &
EMARMGHS2EE L MAFAMBEZE
2010F 12 A1 H L BFE M AR 116.1
HE T MN135.2% E# £2011F 12 H31H
L BEEMNARE2IGIEE T

HERBETERASKRBEERNBRT
AEBNMBRAEFESELERERRA
B BRFPBEAREEKFERBEERE
BRriRS - TEEENETE  RENTE T
BxrmmmkEsEs BsnT AR
RERGERE(WERNKE BESREE
B LUEB) R iE) W BB A AT NE - AEKE
EMEZEFRBERRERGROES
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Chairman’'s Staterment

TRHBES

With the support of our senior management, staff and shareholders, the
Group has achieved rapid growth and continued to build momentum as
we move forward into 2012 and onwards. During the year of 2011, we
continued to leverage our comparative advantages and first-mover
advantages for expansion in China. Our business strategies include
continuously strengthening our sales and distribution channels and
marketing activities, enhancing our research and development
capabilities, new design and efficient productions, penetration in second-
and third-tier cities. These strategies add value to our brand and reinforce
our leadership position in the indoor sportswear industry in China. We
believe that these strategies have given us the competitive edge in the
niche indoor sportswear industry, which is in an infant stage of
development.

Since 2008 Olympic Games, more and more Chinese people are
interested in indoor sports such as swimming, gym and yoga. The
Group’s deep roots and commitment to the principles of good
sportsmanship have enabled the Group to take full advantage of the
opportunities in China’s consumer market. We have focused our efforts
specifically in the areas of brand building, sales network expansion and
product innovation. In addition, the Group’s continuous efforts to improve
operational transparency and corporate governance have helped us
develop a high level of recognition and support. This is also reflected in
the ongoing confidence and support we have received from our
shareholders.

Another milestone for the Group is the success of the Company’s listing
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. The Company launched the
public offering from 6 December 2011, and was duly listed on 16
December 2011. The successful listing of the Company enables us to
complete the transformation from a manufacturing enterprise to a listed
company and highlights our advantage of having access to the
international capital market since then.

EASEEREREE BIRBRRAXIHE
T AEEERRRER BERFLE
BEBRNEFRARARFENERP N - 1

011 AEBEERELREBEBRRLT
EEPRTRERES AEENEBRE

B ERETEMRIEE R DHERENA TS
HEEE REWEED FERFRSX
HECUARBEZEZ Z/GWT - -ZERK
RASENRERENINE YEBRAE
BEFPEEZNEIRBHITROBEMM -
AEBERE FRFEBALAEERZERE
RNEIEENENES R D TEIEMR

BEED-

H2008F REZ AR MiRBZHHEAY
EREH (AR K 5 KW RKEE o K
EIMWV@%M&ﬂ%ﬁEﬂﬁELP

BHRAMNARESAERRE ﬂ%*
BOEEMSHROKE AEBELEFE

T R W 1 32 ~$ﬁ%§%§%§ﬁ£?ﬁlﬁ§§uuﬁﬂ%ﬁ 4
S REBAE NN ELENERAER

TEER WBEPRAEEESRSH
MEERXF MASBERRAERTH

150 B S H5 TR IE 4F IR BR 1L B

AEENS —BEREAARAEEFT
FIRA ET - AEBEH2011F12 A6 #
TAREE - WHR2011F12816H ER
Me RQRBMEIN ETLSAEBETHKR
BErEINEMARNESE  RBHAEER
Bt EEEBREATMENES -
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Chairman’'s Statement

TRHES

Continued Financial Success -

For the year of 2011, the Group continued to deliver strong financial
performance with the turnover for the year rising by 99.9% to RMB695.2
million, net profit increased by 135.2% to RMB273.1 milion and basic
earnings per share increased by 120.0% to RMB22 cents compared with
those of year 2010.

Based on these distinguished results, | am delighted to report that the
Board has recommended payment of a final dividend of HK8.4 cents
(equivalent to approximately RMB6.8 cents) per share.

Continuous Brand Building and Elevation =

The Group is poised to take advantage of growing consumers’ interest in
indoor sportswear market by focusing on unique consumer dynamics in
the Chinese market with an effort to gain competitive edge and compete
with other active brands in China today. In addition to greater efforts in
advertising and promotion in the domestic market, we also dedicated
more resources to sponsorships of domestic contests and competitions,
including Miss Asia, Miss Bikini and some other model contests. We have
made remarkable progress in enhancing recognition of our brand through
our support of these events.

BHERAFERY <

R0 F  AEBEBHFSARAINIH KR
B HEH2010FEL AFEMEXEERS
AR¥695.28 & 7T - I IEE99.9% » % F
HEARE27131E BT B IBE135.2% -
BREABNEE ARK2Y HiRE
120.0% °

ENLMEFEE NRAMAEHESS
ER2BKNRBARETRSAEMEER
WMARKEB8D) o

FEZBIREARE <

BRBINTEMSEFANEEDE &
SEEBNBEEEHERNESRHTS
THRESONEE SHIREHEFES - UH
ESPHAMERRERASF KT
BEBAMBETESREFEAEY  ~%
BERERREZERANEDEMESE NI
£ RN LERDERE T HEAM
BRER - AEBCRSHREKR - EEM
XM EABERRATREAEE -
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Chairman’'s Staterment

TRHBES

E

Our Hosa™ brand represents active, fashionable and healthy lifestyles.
Our reputation in China as a high-quality and fashionable indoor
sportswear brand had been strengthened over the years by numerous
events and recognitions. Our Hosa™ brand has been recognized annually
as one of China’s 500 Most Valuable Brands since 2008. In 2008, our
Hosa™ brand was recognized as an exemplary brand in the China
swimwear industry and we were chosen to be the exclusive provider of
swimwear products at the National Aquatics Center (Water Cube), the
site of aquatic events during the 2008 Olympics Games. We also have
been collaborating with the China Fashion Designer Association every
year since 2003 to co-host the Hosa Cup China Swimwear Design
Contest (DA EIZKIEERETAE). We believe that the strategy of
continuous brand building and elevation is the key and necessary for our
future success. Therefore, we shall also continue to maintain diversified
marketing campaigns.

Expansion of Sales & Distribution Network and
Strong Research and Development Capability -

Our sales and distribution network continued to expand in 2011. The
number of Hosa retail outlets in China reached 1,212 by the end of 2011.
We plan to strengthen our brand perception in the second- and third-tier
cities in the coming future and continue to offer an enhanced shopping
experience for consumers. With extensive sales channels, including
specialty stores, department stores, professional retail outlets and online
stores, we can effectively expand our customer base. Meanwhile, the
Group continued to strengthen research and development of new
product and focus on delivery of highly competitive sports products.
These include collaborating with Italian and French fashion consulting
firms and incorporating the latest global trends, fabrics, patterns and
technologies into our products to provide customers with comfort,
functionality and style. Moving forward we shall continue to strengthen
our research and development and design capabilities, an initiative that
we believe will create more demand and drive growth in sales.

AEERELVRBERKREZES

B 18 Mo f2
RERFR - ZFREBZBEEHRERE
KE RO TAEBREAPREL XKW
=N E AR @A EE - 520084 fE -
ENMERERE T F YRR (PRS00 AE

BEmE)Z— ° R20084 » &2 ™R &
B KEBTEERETAERERE K&
B 5 &R 520084 BiE ) kI8 B BRiiG
#— BRI KEE P LKLL)) HKES
EmBREER - ANEE H2003F I E
FHABRRERTMABEE PR EDTAER
KERFRE - AEEMBE BFEH YRR
FRENREEAEE A RESKIKNE
BEKEFN AL NEBEBNBEERTS
SR SHETE -

‘ﬁ% ﬁﬁégﬁlmﬂﬁﬁl’)\&gﬁkm
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AEEBROMNFHBEERTHEERD HA
i Z20NFFE  EDPEFENTER R
FEBEBI212ME - REBGFERTAH
KMBAE -  =RWTHmEMEE - 4
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RHHERE BREBEE BEES Z
X¥TERmEMBEEE AEEATEXA
BREPEM AR NEEESNARHEN
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SEAEERELAETERTRNEDH
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Chairman’'s Statement

TRHES

Diverse and Innovative Marketing Strategies =

The Group carries out a variety of innovative marketing activities
nationwide and worldwide, such as sponsorships for pageants and
contests, outdoor promotions and advertisements to promote Hosa
brand as a symbol of an active, fashionable and healthy lifestyle.

Over the years, we have sponsored a number of large events, including
the Miss Bikini International Pageant, Miss Asia, Asia Super Model
Contest, Hosa Cup National Aerobic Gymnastics Contest, Hosa Cup
China Swimwear Design Contest and National Fitness Walk which
received overwhelming responses. Hosa products are also promoted and
sold at professional stadiums, gyms and vacation resorts. We also make
use of Hosa gyms for marketing and places multi-media advertisements
to reinforce its brand image.

In 2011, the Group sponsored the China-Tianjin regional contest for the
61st Miss World Pageant, global final contest for the 2011 World Super
Model Contest, the final contest for the China Super Model Contest, the
Sanya Women’s Open for the 2011 World Beach Volleyball Tournament,
the China-Shanghai Jinshan Open for the 2011 Swatch — Fivb World
Beach Volleyball Tournament and Beijing station for the Swatch 2011
International Beach Volleyball League Grand Slam. On the other hand,
the Group also received the “Consumers’ Most Favorite Brand Award”
during the 2011 China International Underwear Culture Week.

SRARAFNTEERRE <

5 B £ B A S TS R RO BT TS HE TR
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BEEETANRE -

ZER AKECERNZEARES B
BIFR L & e/ ME - SR - SRR
RE -EIPNEZEBEAREBERE EDH
TEXERARXREREZRBEEET R
BRI -EVERNMEEERES TP
DREREBNEERHEE NEBE AN AE
PREFETHIEHER YR ZHBRW
EE AR RETR -

Koo F REFEER 7T F61EER/NE
BXAREAPBIRENMELLE - 20115
HABRERAENEZHRE  FRBR
EERKEHRE 2011 F 1 R Y8 JF 5k K
&= 55 & F A E - 20114 Swatch —
Fivottt F0 B BEBR M B A R /88 LA
& A %2 2011 4F Swatch B B ) # HF B Bt 2 K
MELARUENLEE - Z—FE AEETFR
OMEFEFBRBBAXREBRENEE S
EEEmigsl-

EDBBEBERAR 20114F#K 13



Chairman’'s Staterment

TRHBES

Future Development =<

Looking forward, the future of China’s indoor sportswear market is bright.
According to the industry research by Frost & Sullivan, the expected
compound annual growth rates (based on ex-factory revenue) for
swimwear, fitness wear and sports underwear from 2010 to 2015 are
19.4%, 27.7% and 27.1% respectively. For the indoor sportswear
market, the rising living standards, increasing urbanization in China, rising
health awareness, growing demand for leisure activities of Chinese
consumers are expected. With the economic development and
urbanization, more swimming pools, fithess centers and gymnasiums will
be opened across nation. These facilities are expected to be the key
market driver in the next three to five years as they serve not only as
venues for sports activities, but also as sales terminals for indoor
sportswear. In addition, Chinese government’s initiatives to promote the
health of the general public, such as the establishment of “National
Sports and Exercises Day” after the 2008 Olympic Games, have
cultivated stronger health awareness among people in China and will thus
contribute to the growth of the indoor sportswear markets.

RRER ~

BRERK FEMNZEANEBRS T ISHR
SHBP - RBEFEHEDFNCHITER
E - H2010F = 20159 » KEE) « 2 F H N
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Chairman’'s Statement

TRHES

In view of the bright prospect of the industry, we will face fiercer
competition domestically and internationally. The Group will continue to
focus on four major business strategies, namely, branding, network,
product quality and management of research and design in order to
enhance our competitive edge. The Group’s marketing activities will
continue to support our business strategies and we will continue to offer
an even greater variety of high quality indoor sportswear products. To
strengthen our leading market position and sustain continuous growth,
we shall facilitate our brand-building nationwide via more advertising and
promotion campaigns. Our retail sales and distribution network will be
further expanded throughout China as we open up more retail stores and
deepen the penetration of our products. For first-tier cities, we shall
continue to enhance brand image and store efficiency. For second- and
third-tier cities, we shall increase our network penetration to embrace
opportunities offered by the rapid growth in these markets. Now and in
the future, the Group will continue to uphold its mission, vision and core
values in order to sustain the growth and success that we accomplished
in the past. These include being a leader in the indoor sportswear
industry, offering high-quality indoor sportswear products and inspiring
people to pursue excellence and fulfilment through indoor sports. | would
like to convey my deepest gratitude to everyone that has been involved
with the excellent results of our Group in 2011. It was through the
contributions and support of our senior management, staff, partners,
customers and shareholders that we have been able to accomplish such
amazing financial results.

Shi Hongliu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2012
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Management
Discussion and Analysis
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1.

Indoor Sportswear Industry Overview —=

In comparison with 2010, China had a steady growth in the gross
domestic product in 2011. The increasing efforts from the Chinese
Government to strengthen the domestic markets and the
appreciation of Renminbi also enhanced the purchasing power of
Chinese consumers. The growth of purchasing power had been
further boosted by rapid urbanization. This trend in urbanization,
along with the large population base, is anticipated to create an
attractive consumer group. Moreover, the household income of
white-collar consumers also increases. In view of the rising number
of indoor sports facilities and the pursuit of healthy lifestyle under
the fast-paced urbanization, China’s indoor sportswear industry
has benefitted from the growing population who can afford to
purchase high-quality products and is loyal to mid-to-high end
brands. The prospect of China’s indoor sportswear industry is
bright. The market size is also in a fast-growing stage at a
compound annual growth rate of 24% from 2011 to 2015. The
strong growth potential of China’s indoor sportswear industry
differentiates itself from the general China sportswear markets.
Indoor sportswear industry includes mainly the swimwear, fitness
wear, sports underwear and the corresponding accessories.

Turnover = 48

44 4,

ERNEHRHFITERE <

E20104F #8 tr - 20114 A B &9 B i
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SR B K i
2. Brief Description on the Basic Information of

the Company =

Hosa is principally engaged in design, manufacturing and sales of
indoor sportswear products under our Hosa™ brand. Our history
can be traced back to October 1996 when we used the English
brand name Haosha. In 2002, our brand name is changed to
Hosa™ from Haosha in order to reflect the international styling of
our products. Hosa™ brand has won numerous awards. Since
2007, it has been the Group’s strategy to focus the efforts and
resources on our overall brand-building and management, and the
Group has adopted a formal full distributorship business model
accordingly. Such transformation had been fully completed in 2010.
We have grown rapidly in recent years in terms of turnover and
sales channels. As of 31 December 2011, we mainly sold our
products to 29 distributors, who along with their sub-distributors
operated 1,212 retail outlets as well as online sales platforms in
China.

On 16 December 2011, the Company was successfully listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange which marked a major
milestone for the development of the Group. The successful listing
of the Company enables us to complete the transformation from a
manufacturing enterprise to a listed company and highlights our
advantage of having access to the international capital market since
then.

Business Highlight =

In 2011, our turnover recorded an impressive growth and reached
RMB695.2 million, representing an increase of 99.9% from our
turnover in 2010. The net profit attributable to shareholders of the
Company amounted to RMB273.1 million, representing a significant
growth of 135.2%. The major drivers for the growth are the
expansion of distribution networks and reduction of wholesale

ﬁ' int from 75% to 65%.
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(@ Our products (@ XEEWEmM
Swimwear KEH

Our swimwear products are fashionable, functional and of
high quality. We normally conduct thorough market research
and feature the latest global fashion trends in our swimwear
designs. We also select premium fabrics and incorporate the
latest technologies in fabrics and patterns into our designs.
For example, we utilize imported Nylon and Lycra
combination fabrics for some of our swimwear products,
which are comfortably tight-fitting and highly resistant to wear
and tear, UV radiation, saltwater and sweat. According to the
industry research by Frost & Sullivan, in 2010, we
outperformed all domestic and multinational brands in our
sales of swimwear products in China, particularly in the mid-
to-high end swimwear segment, where we capture the
largest market share of 23.5% in terms of ex-factory sales in
China. In 2011, we continued as a market leader for
swimwear. Our Hosa™ swimwear products include swimsuits
and beachwear for women, men and children.

In 2011, the turnover of our swimwear product was
approximately RMB237.2 million, representing a 65.4%
growth over previous year and 34.1% of our 2011 total
turnover.

REBEBMKESHE RFERE
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B 20104 7 1 B #Y K38 B) 2= o 38
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EEREFRSHKESHD B U
HREERET A EEDEFPE
BAMMIEHEE B235% 1
2011 4F  AEBERE AKESHH
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Fitness Wear

Due to the increased availability of indoor exercise facilities as
a result of urbanization, greater public health awareness and
rising income levels in China, we broadened our product mix
to include products for various indoor fithess activities, such
as yoga, gym and dance. We carefully design and select the
appropriate fibers and fabrics for our fitness wear products to
ensure that each product incorporates functionality, comfort
and style. For example, we utilize bamboo charcoal modal,
which has excellent moisture-absorbing, breathable and
anti-microbial properties, for some of our soft-textured yoga
apparel, and Coolmax, which dries five times faster than pure
cotton fabrics and retains its shape after repeated wash, for
some of our moisture-wicking fitness wear products.
According to the industry research by Frost & Sullivan, in
2010, we outperformed all domestic and multinational brands
in our sales of fitness wear products in China, particularly in
the mid-to-high end fithess wear segment, where we
captured the largest market share of 19.4% in terms of
ex-factory sales in China. Our Hosa™ fitness wear products
include apparel for women and men for indoor fithess
activities.

In 2011, the turnover of our fitness wear product was
approximately RMB155.3 million, representing a 110.4%
growth over previous year and 22.3% of our 2011 total
turnover.
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Sports underwear

Qur sports underwear product line comprises professional
sports underwear and casual sports underwear. We have
significant expertise in product design which caters to the
preferences and body types of Chinese consumers. Our
sports underwear products are designed to offer superior
performance, fit and comfort to users both during exercise
and for everyday casual wear. We produce our products
using fabrics composed of functional fibers and fabrics, such
as Lycra, Coolmax, Modal and thermal fibers, which have
elastic, breathable and moisture management and thermal
properties. According to the industry research by Frost &
Sullivan, in 2010, we outperformed all domestic and
multinational brands in our sales of sports underwear
products in China, particularly in the mid-to-high end sports
underwear segment, where we captured the largest market
share of 42.7% in terms of ex-factory sales in China. Our
Hosa™ sports underwear products include professional
sports underwear and casual sports underwear for women
and men.

In 2011, the turnover of our sports underwear product was
approximately RMB270.3 million, representing a 142.2%
growth over previous year and 38.9% of our 2011 total
turnover.
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(b)

Accessories

To complement our swimwear, fitness wear and sports
underwear product lines and to supplement our target
customers’ various sporting needs, we also offer accessories
such as goggles, swimming caps, beach bags and sandals
for water sports, as well as yoga mats, dance shoes, gym
bags, sport towels, wristbands, headbands and water bottles
for general exercise.

In 2011, the turnover of our accessories products was
approximately RMB32.4 million, representing a 71.1% growth
over previous year and 4.7% of our 2011 total turnover.

Product mix

We own a comprehensive portfolio of high-quality indoor
sportswear products. We rank first in each of the relevant
market sector for each of our product categories. Focusing
on the customer bases of urban and white-collar
professionals, our products are uniquely positioned at mid-to-
high end markets and promoting our professional image. The
following table set forth the turnover by products:

(b)

B 1
RESAEENKESY RE5H8
MERESHAREmMSE LB E
BEPIRNESHFR AKH
TREHEEE - Pk EESHA
BYPKER - KIE - D EREIRE
PARe — RE B A O T 400 25 - 5% B
E RBER EHEM BT
SR N BB KEE

RO AEERGERNE
EHENHABARBRIBETL &
EFEET1.1% 15 2N & E2011
FHEETEMNATY% -

EmAS

AEEEFREZANBEER
EPRMHESR RANZTHES®
MREEBTHITETOHRE
- REBOEREHE AR
EFRELBEA®R EFEHM
LHRARERESDS  AJHEERM
MEXETR - TREIIZEMS
DRV

Swimwear K IE B 237,249 34.1 143,477 4113
Fitness wear & & m 155,276 22.3 73,806 21.2
Sports underwear EHAK 270,269 38.9 111,582 32.1
Accessories g 14 32,374 4.7 18,922 5.4
Total st 695,168 100.0 347,787 100.0

22 HOSA International Limited  Annual Report 2011



Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEsmN NI
Turnover
EEH
2011
4.7%
34.1%

38.9%
22.3%

= Swimwear 7KiEH)
~ Fitness wear f& &1l
~= Sports underwear E&)RK

~ Accessories it {4

Swimwear is our core product and represents a significant
portion of our total turnover. In 2011, sports underwear
generated the largest sales income for us due to several
reasons. Firstly, our business strategy of concentrating on the
China market led to the reduction of export sales (in which
export sales of swimwear represented a significant portion in
the past). Besides, the customers’ preferences on sports
underwear in the newly-opened retail outlets (mainly in
second- and third-tier cities) led to the rising demand over
these types of products. As a result, the sales of sports
underwear represented 38.9% of our total turnover in 2011.

As to seasonality, in general, more swimwears are being sold
during spring and summer while alternatively, more sports
underwears are sold during autumn and winter. While for the
fitness wear, the demand is relatively stable during the whole
year. Therefore, overall speaking, we are not greatly affected
by seasonality.

2010

5.4%
41.3%

32.1%
21.2%

~~ Swimwear 7KiEg)
~ Fitness wear 5%
~= Sports underwear E&) XX

~ Accessories Ei{F
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(c) Brand promotion and marketing

Hosa promotes “Healthy, Fashionable and Active Lifestyle”.
We adopted a combination of effective brand promotional
strategies via creative and diverse marketing channels which
includes:

(1)

event sponsorships — select international or regional
pageants, indoor sports contests, or events that
promote physical wellness or healthy style such as Miss
Bikini International Pageant, Hosa Cup National Aerobic
Gymnastic Contest, Hosa Cup Chinese Swimwear
Design Contest and Miss Asia;

media advertising — selectively sponsor programs
based on brand personality, product characteristics
and target user groups, like fitness and fashion print
media and television channels; and

onsite marketing — select the target promotion points
such as fitness centre and recreational facilities in which
the trainers wear the Hosa products, Miss Bikini, city
parade.

The above are cost-effective channels to reach our target
customers because of the extensive coverage of the events
and leverage effects on the relationship between fitness
trainers and customers.

(c)
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(d) Sale and distribution channels d SHERKHEERE
Basically, we sell our products via different channels. The EXLE AEBEBRATREBENH
following table sets forth the number of Hosa retail outlets by EER TERFHY N2011E K&
retail channel as of 31 December 2011 and 2010: 2010F12A31HIREE REE
DHEDTERIFHEE ¢
Department stores BE®S 906 74.8 562 84.4
Professional retail outlets = 3 T € 4K g 68 5.6 62 9.3
Hosa specialty stores EHEER 238 19.6 42 6.3
Total @t 1,212 100.0 666 100.0

2011 2010
6.3%

19.6%
9.3%

5.6%

84.4%

~~ Department stores ~< Department stores
AEES BEHES

~= Professional retail outlets ~< Professional retail outlets
EETERG HEZELG

< Hosa specialty stores < Hosa specialty stores
ELEEE O BB

—
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(e)

Department stores are our major sales and distribution
channels because of our brand positioning. We believe that
our target customers are the mid- to high-income consumers,
who prefer to purchase Hosa products in a relatively high-end
and comfortable environment. We expect that department
stores are still our major sales and distribution channels in the
forthcoming years. Apart from the department stores, we also
have sales via professional retail outlets, Hosa specialty
stores, internet sales and temporary and seasonal counters.
The online sales and temporary and seasonal counters are
excluded from the above table because of their different
nature.

Product design

We have accumulated significant expertise in research and
development in the indoor sportswear industry over 15 years.
We have dedicated in-house professional product design
teams who analyze the market demands and preferences
based on sales reports, feedback from distributors and retail
outlets, market research, sales fairs and international and
domestic product exhibitions in order to closely track the
market and global trend.

Besides, we also consult trainers at indoor fithess facilities to
collect first-hand information and customers’ preferences on
current fitness trends and experiences from target customers
to optimize product offering. In addition, we continue to
incorporate the latest technologies into products to create a
combination of functionality, comfort and style.

(e)
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(f)

(9)

Supply chain management and distributorship

We have solid and steady relationships with many key
suppliers and adopt stringent quality control throughout the
whole procurement process. On the other hand, we have
maintained effective distributor management standards and
guidelines, and we have close relationships with distributors.
We jointly discuss and set store opening and revenue targets
with distributors in order to construct harmonious
relationships with them. We believe these suppliers and
distributors are our valuable business partners.

Business strategies

Solidify our leading position

Along with the growth of the industry, we continue to solidify
our leading position by expanding our sales and distribution
network in China. We have successfully leveraged our leading
position in the first-tier cities and the regional resources or our
distributors to develop and expand our sales coverage in the
second- and third-tier cities, which are experiencing rapid
economic growth. As at 31 December 2011, our distributors
and sub-distributors operated 1,212 retail outlets nationwide.
We expect that such active expansion will continue in 2012
as the demand of indoor sportswear is increasing rapidly for
second- and third-tier cities.

(f)

(9)
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Strengthening our marketing activities to promote our
products and enhance Hosa™ brand culture

It is our strategy to increase awareness of our Hosa'™ brand
as a premier indoor sportswear brand in China by continuing
our cooperation with various sport and fashion associations
as well as by identifying additional event programs and
associations that align with our brand value. In 2011, we
continued our sponsorship of various international, national
and regional events and fully leveraged the publicity
surrounding such events to promote our products. Moreover,
we expanded our marketing channels alongside our
expanding sales and distribution network. In 2011, we
launched several advertising and promotion events such as
International Sand Volleyball League, The 36th Miss Bikini
Competition, The 7th China Swimwear Design Competition,
Hosa Health & Care Charity Day etc. These sponsorships and
marketing events have effectively and efficiently promoted our
brand name in China.
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Strengthening our research, design and development
capabilities and optimize our product mix

We believe that research, design and development
capabilities are key factors in maintaining our competitive
advantages as well as in sustaining our future development
and growth. To further strengthen our existing product design
and development capabilities, we aim to commence
operation of a new in-house research, design and
development center headquartered in Beijing in 2012. The
location of such research center has been decided and we
expect that it will commence operation in the second half of
2012. Our research, design and development work force will
be expanded accordingly to include additional professional
designers and research, design and development staff. We
also plan to conduct research projects with external
collaborators to develop new technologies for improving our
products in their functionality, quality and style. We believe
that our strengthened research, design and development
capabilities will also bolster our efforts to optimize our product
variety and augment our product differentiation. As at 31
December 2011, the number of staff in our research and
development team increased from 43 to 89.
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(h) Financial review

Turnover

By operating segments

Turnover of the Group for the financial year ended 31
December 2011 was RMB695.2 milion (2010: RMB347.8
million), representing an increase of 99.9% as compared to
the turnover for the financial year ended 31 December 2010.
Increase in the Group’s turnover was mainly attributable to
the successful transformation to full distributorship business
model and the expansion of our number of retail outlets
rapidly during the year from 666 retail outlets as at the end of
2010 to 1,212 retail outlets as at the end of 2011. Another
factor for the significant growth of revenue is the reduction of
the wholesale discount from 75% to 65%, representing 40%
increase in the revenue for the similar products compared
with 2010. The following table sets forth the sources of our
revenue by operating segments in our operations:

(h) Fi¥5E R

A& 5 2 E

AN £ F #H =2011F12 831 H
I BREENEEEAARYE
695.2H & L(2010F : A R ¥
3478E & L) * WE E2010F 12
A31AIHRFEERL ETEEN
99.9% - NEE R E EREEMNE
TEBRAER A EELHE
BEAURTERBHERNFR
20104 F K 1666 R = & 4 i
AIFE R 22011 F FEA1,212
REERE - MAKIBEENS
—HAZ A ENNH75%EE
65% @ fHE N FEE @ MK AR
2010 1 N40% ° T 5= # 7| AN &£
EIZ E S E a8 o/ Uk AR

i

Domestic sales REEE
Swimwear IK B B 232,891 33.5 97,937 28.2
Fithess wear & mn 154,772 22.2 68,387 19.6
Sports underwear EERK 270,269 38.9 111,582 32.1
Accessories i 14 32,374 4.7 18,892 5.4
Subtotal INEE 690,306 99.3 296,798 85.3
Overseas sales BIHNEE
Swimwear KB B 4,358 0.6 45,540 13.1
Fitness wear & & TN 504 0.1 5,419 1.6
Accessories [iKGs - - 30 0.01
Subtotal INET 4,862 0.7 50,989 14.7
Total @t 695,168 100.0 347,787 100.0
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Domestic sales increased from RMB296.8 million to
RMB690.3 million, representing an increase of 132.6%.
Overseas sales decreased from RMB51.0 million to RMB4.9
million, representing a decrease of 90.5%. The changes are
consistent with our business strategy of focusing in China
domestic market. We expect that the overseas sales will
represent an insignificant portion of our revenue in the
forthcoming future.

The following table sets forth the number of units sold and
the average selling prices of our Hosa™ products for the
periods indicated:

BAHEEmRARK268H & T
#EINEARK6E0038 8T
8 A132.6% ° BINHE R ARE
510BEEB LR EARBAIOR
BT W IE B90.5% ° % & & B
HEAEBEITFEEATSNE
THREE — B o NEETEHIE MY
BRAD AR ARG A B AR

RN

TREIRAAREABAEE L™
EnHESEHLELUHARTHE
18

Swimwear KB E 3,686 64.4 4,002 35.8

Fitness wear fi2 & i 2,104 73.8 1,428 51.7

Sports underwear BEIAK 3,342 80.9 2,016 55.3

Accessories fid 946 34.2 703 26.9
10,078 8,149

The total units sold in 2011 were approximately 10 million
pieces, representing an increase of 23.7%. The units sold for
all product categories increased except for swimwear
because of the decrease in overseas sales of swimwear in
2011. Due to reduction of wholesale discounts, changes in
product mix and continuous product positioning toward more
higher-end products, the average selling prices increased by
approximately 79.9%, 42.7%, 46.3% and 27.1% for
swimwear, fitness wear, sports underwear and accessories,
respectively.
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AEBEE— T HIHEE RKHBE
D REARNEKRRERRERH
EHGIHE - TREAINBHH

We further divide our sales and distribution network into six
geographical regions and online sales in China and overseas
sales. The following table sets forth the details:

1 :
Sales made to
Provinces, municipalities and No. of No. of sub-  No. of retail our distributors and
Region autonomous regions distributors distributors outlets customers in
LT FEE
— &% =& z2E —BREER
& # HETRBAARE REBHE REWHE KinBE EFAEHNEE
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®BTT
Northern China Beijing, Tianjin, Hebei, Shanxi, 8 22 363 217,849 68,620
Ningxia, Shandong and
Inner Mongolia
ZEibi R b RF e WEE
EE LURRARE
North Eastern Liaoning, Jilin and 2 2 79 61,807 25,305
China Heilongjiang
Rt HE HMREBETL
Eastern China Shanghai, Zhejiang, 6 8 284 128,133 46,652
Jiangsu and Anhui
ER = BB I IHRELH
Western China Sichuan, Chongqing, Guizhou, 4 21 159 70,291 34,962
Shaanxi and Yunnan
Ecgith A ol - =B BN
PREKER
Central China Hubei, Henan, Hunan and 4 6 166 86,197 30,124
Jiangxi
i [= AL~ TR - MR ROLEE
Southern China Guangdong, Fuijian, 4 4 161 109,049 65,306
Hainan and Guangxi
E = BR B BmkER
28 63 1,212 673,326 270,969
Online sales 1 — — 16,980 25,829
ERIHE
Domestic sales 29 63 1,212 690,306 296,798
A &
Overseas sales 4,862 50,989
A INHE
Total 695,168 347,787
“Et
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Similar with previous years, Northern China, Eastern China
and Southern China generated the largest sales to the Group.
They represented 65.5% of total turnover in 2011 (2010:
51.9%). The higher proportion is due to the expansion of
sales and distribution channels in these regions, especially,
the Eastern China region. The total number of retail outlets in
these three regions increased from 471 to 808 (representing
an increase of 71.6%). Apart from these, the other regions
such as North Eastern China and Central China regions
become more important as their contribution to the Group is
increasing. For example, the sales in North Eastern China
region increased from RMB25.3 million in 2010 to RMB61.8
million (representing an increase of 144.2%) while the sales in
Central China region increased from RMB30.1 million in 2010
to RMB86.2 million in 2011 (representing an increase of
186.1%). These are also because of the expansion of sales
and distribution channels in these regions. The total number
of retail outlets in these two regions increased from 129 to
245 (representing an increase of 89.9%). We expect that the
prospects of these regions are bright in the foreseeable
future.

Heilongjiang
BET

T

K

HRALEFHEU EE -
ES PN e PN S ok
EHERMZEA  ELLEE2011
F 42 & ¥ 5 1)65.5% (20104 ¢
51.9%) o fhEb I N Y AR Z E i
B(LHEEERMWR)BAEER
DHERBAMB - EAEMNT
€ R 48 B 471K 18 808K
(ERAET1.6%) &Itk 2 5
A E bt [ (20 3R b i [ K %
FHE)EAEEN TR A &=E
meotmELRNESEME
Dol Rib@AEERESR
2010F W) A R #2538 & Jt 1%
EARECISEBT(EREXRA
144.2%) + 2 H i [ /) 35 & 58
2010 M A R #3018 B T
BEOITFMARKES2AEE T
(EREEAE186.1%) - ZE RN
RHREBEARZSEHENHEE R
KRBT - EMEENT
R 48 B 1205 1 T 245K
(# K X 5289.9%) o /AN & B 8 #§
R RER  ZEHENE KA
S— Rt
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The number of distributors increased from 13 as of 31
December 2010 to 29 as of 31 December 2011. The number
of sub-distributors also increased from 47 as of 31 December
2010 to 63 as of 31 December 2011. Going forward, we will
continue to have individual expansion plans set for each
distributor in its respective distribution agreement after
conducting our own market analysis of regional population
composition and consumer spending. We believe that our
distribution network will enable us to expand our business
and accelerate sales growth at lower costs and lower
operational risks as well as strengthen our brand recognition
throughout China.

— A SH P B BB 2010412
A31 8 /135 18 1 £20114F 12
A31 B #I29% o — RS 45T 8 8
B 201012 A31 B A47 4 &
22011412 A31H AM63% -
BRERK  NEBFEEEITH
HEADEEGRBEEERIET
MEIPMERESENLHERE
NEAES —REHEBHETERNER
& AEEMAE LHEBEKG
FAEESUBERER  URIE
B B 81K B 2 5 JEL B N R 8
BE UERARZPHNRE
MEE -
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Cost of sales

Qur cost of sales primarily is consisted of production costs
and procurement costs of finished products from external
sources. Production costs include raw material costs, labor
costs as well as manufacturing overhead incurred in the
production of swimwear, fithess wear and sports underwear.
The following table sets forth a breakdown of our cost of
sales for our products:

HERAE
AEENHENATEZBRELE
PR Ko 1) 1 8B BR B B dm O AR S
EERABREENKES 25
Tai 10 K2 & B 7K E A Y R B FLEK
ABIRARBEER - TX
BOIAEEE DD HEE KK H
An

Raw materials B 183,366 69.8 128,335 71.9
Labor s 32,485 12.4 20,613 11.6
Manufacturing overnead & & 8,840 3.4 19,350 10.8

Procurement costs of X &R R B K AR
finished products 37,861 14.4 10,084 5.7
262,552 100.0 178,382 100.0

Raw material costs primarily refer to the costs of procuring
raw materials used in the production of our products, such as
fabrics, threads and ancillary clothing materials. In 2011, we
engaged 44 raw materials suppliers. The average purchase
price for our key raw materials, including but not limited to
various stretch fabrics for the year ended 31 December 2011
was RMB69.7 per kilogram which was higher than those for
2010. Such changes in average purchase prices of our key
raw materials were primarily due to the fluctuation of
commaodity prices, in particular crude oil and cotton prices.

BEMEANAEZEEBEEERS
BERAANRME(0mER -
SR REEKRKME) R -
K201 F - AEBZBMURR
MEHER - #HZE22011F12A8
BJIBEFE - AEBEEXZRMH
(BEETRASEEE®mE)H
FHEBEAS AT ARKE7
T mRR2010FEN B BER -
AEBFEZRMBFHEBED
EHEH DNEZHRERER
(CEREREHRIBER) KA
g(o
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Certain production and processing steps of our products,
primarily fabric manufacturing, fabric printing and dyeing, and
fabric cutting, sewing and stitching, are outsourced to
external contract manufacturers. We provide fabric materials
to contract manufacturers for processing and pay outsourced
processing and service fees. Such outsourced processing
and service fees are categorized under our raw material
costs. Labor costs are consisted of salaries, benefits and
other compensation paid to our staff. Manufacturing overhead
mainly includes depreciation of production facilities, costs
associated with operating our facilities including electricity,

water and maintenance costs etc.

AEBEGHNETEENTI SR
(F2AEHEE BHEE T
RS R B2 4)) SN B T AN ER Y Sk
BEER AEBRHEBEAM R
HIINBDEERETNIT - WA
INBEEMIERBE - L5
BEAMIEBRBEESBEEAE
ERERERMBERAET - 8 TR
BREAAEEAEEETI SN0
& wBAREMBEMAY ®iE
BERTERELEELMITE - &
BEEMRBEAKA(IKE R
B A) & -

Swimwear IKE F 83,762 31.9 72,909 40.9
Fitness wear & & B n 51,435 19.6 38,011 21.3
Sports underwear BEERNK 116,149 44.2 59,023 33.1
Accessories fid 14 11,206 4.3 8,439 4.7

262,552 100.0 178,382 100.0

The cost of sales of swimwear to total cost of sales dropped
from 40.9% to 31.9% mainly due to the reduction of volume
of export sales of swimwear. The corresponding revenue
dropped from RMB45.5 million in 2010 to RMB4.4 million in
2011. Alternatively, the cost of sales of sports underwear to
total cost of sales increased from 33.1% to 44.2% mainly due
to the increase in sales volume in domestic market (from
2,016,000 pieces in 2010 to 3,342,000 pieces in 2011). The
cost of sales of fitness wear and accessories to total cost of

sales were relatively stable in both 2011 and 2010.

KB B A B K AN B 4B 5 K
N A8 LE F40.9% % K £31.9% -
FEHRKEDHNHOHEEZER
D ET B o ¥ FE B UL A B3 2010 4F /Y
ARMBAS5H BILKE2011FH
ARBAABEETL - S5 BHNA
XY 85 5 AR AN B 48 8 B AR AN A
bt H33.1% 1 £442% @ £ E /&
B AT 35 #) 88 = 38 N (32010
F 192,016,000 1F & =20114F &)
3,342,0001F) AT B - & & % fn &
TR EEXRNEEHEERN RN
Lt 532011 5 R 20104 15 #8 4 =2
T o
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Gross profit

Gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2011 was RMB432.6 million (2010: RMB169.4 million),
representing an increase of 155.4% as compared to that of
the year ended 31 December 2010. Gross profit margin of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 was 62.2%
(2010: 48.7%), representing an increase of 13.5%. The
increase was mainly due to (i) the reduction of our wholesale
discount to distributors from 75% to 65% of the suggested
retail price in 2011 and (i) the decrease in our overseas sales
through which we sold products with lower profit margins
than those of our domestic sales.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our gross profit
from our operations and gross profit margin by geographical
regions and operating segments:

EF

N £ B E E2011E12A318 1k
FEMNEFNAARKLIEE
L(2010F : A R #16948 &
T ) B E E2010612 831 H
1F4F E 38 hN155.4% & 2011
FI2AMBLEFENENEA
62.2% (20104F : 48.7%) * & 18 &
13.5% BB N EE B RN
2011 IR F — AR A S Pl Ao AL B2
FHNHEZRTEBMNE%HEESR
65% : (i) G & (N E BRI
FRALEEMNABRENAE
BB E) R PTER o

TREINRMBERLEDHLE D
MARBEREMSEMNRENEK
B A

Domestic sales A&
Swimwear IKIEE) 150,899 64.8 57,612 58.8
Fitness wear # & T i 103,500 66.9 34,222 50.0
Sports underwear EEAK 154,120 57.0 52,559 47 1
Accessories fic 14 21,168 65.4 10,460 55.4
Subtotal INET 429,687 62.2 154,853 52.2
Overseas sales BIONEE
Swimwear IKIEE) 2,588 59.4 12,956 28.4
Fitness wear & & T 341 67.7 1,573 29.0
Accessories it 4 - 23 76.7
Subtotal /INEE 2,929 60.2 14,552 28.5
Total @t 432,616 62.2 169,405 48.7

Our overall gross profit margin increased to 62.2% which is a
remarkable increase compared with our overall gross profit
margin in 2010. The significant increase of gross profit margin
is mainly due to the reduction of wholesale discount offered
to distributors from 75% in 2010 to 65% in 2011.

AEBRHNERBIETMNERES
62.2% * 8L 20104 /) ZE 58 £ 7
RABELN - FFEHKIEE
MEZETDABE T —REHEEH
HE PR 2010F N 75% FAE
2011 FF #)65% PT X °
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Other revenue

Qur other revenue primarily is consisted of government
grants, interest income from interest-bearing bank deposits
and rental income. Government grants were provided by
provincial or prefectural government authorities in the form of
unconditional subsidies as recognition for our contribution to
the local economy through our business operation and our
achievements as one of the core enterprises in local industry
clustering. Other revenue increased from RMB1.9 million in
2010 to RMB4.7 million in 2011, representing an increase of
142.4%. Such increase is mainly due to the changes in the
aggregate amount of government grants available and
amounted to RMB3.4 million in 2011 (2010: RMB0.3 million).

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses are consisted primarily of
advertising and promotion expenses, incentive fees for the
sales personnel employed by the retail outlets, remuneration
and employee benefits for our sales and marketing personnel,
rental expenses, packaging and transportation expenses,
depreciation and amortization expenses of our properties
used for sales and marketing activities and other
miscellaneous expenses. Advertising and promotion
expenses primarily include fees paid for event sponsorship
and television, magazine and billboard advertising. Selling and
distribution expenses increased from RMB29.1 million in
2010 to RMB65.3 million in 2011, representing an increase of
124.3%. The amount increased mainly because of increase in
volume sold during the year and rising amount of spending in
advertising, promotion and sponsorships. For example, we
have sponsored the events of International Sand Volleyball
League, The 36th Miss Bikini Competition, The 7th China
Swimwear Design Competition, Hosa Health & Care Charity
Day etc. Selling and distribution expenses represented
approximately 9.4% of total revenue in 2011 which was
similar with the figure for 2010 (2010: 8.4%).

Hib g A
RAEEBMEMBAEEBERS
AL A EIRITE R A B WA
NESWA - BTt T BaE K
JT Bk 5% BT 4 B DA B AEF B B Y
FRARE UWEEALEEEBE
BEEHMHFLCENERE SRS
BERM TITEREPZLDE
2 — B Bh o E b YL A F20104F
MARK1908 & T 220114
H4.78 BT HBIR B142.4% °
B INEZRR2011 F Al 24
MBI BSEEH R oRFEE
BMAREI4EETL(2010F : A
R¥03BEE L) AT -

HERKHKATEBRRESEMN
EERAY  TERIGMEANE
EAEBMEHER - HEMNMMIS
HEEABMHFIME TEHN M
X BEREGHASY AR
HEMTHERTHNMERE
NEHERAYREMMERST - E
EREERASTTEAEREHY
URES MARESEES
TRMER-HE RCHEKAH
2010F ) A R¥29.1 8 & JT I8 N
E2011FMARME3BE T
HIE A124.3% ° B S B N E
THRFANNE SN RE
& EEEREHEAORETE
Ml BACEEH
R B PEEREE - F36fELEE
NAKXE - BEEFRBIKERE
AE EVEZRRBREEZE
B) o §HE KA SH A AN (52011 F 48
WA R #9.4% - EH2010F KB F
FE3T (20104F : 8.4%) °
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Administrative and other operating expenses
Administrative and other operating expenses are consisted
primarily of remuneration and employee benefits for our
administrative staff, impairment losses for trade receivables
and prepayments, travel and transportation expenses,
general office expenses, stamp duty, professional service
fees relating to the listing of the Company and other
miscellaneous expenses. Administrative and other operating
expenses increased from RMB26.7 milion in 2010 to
RMB55.1 million in 2011, representing an increase of
106.4%. The amount increased mainly because of increase in
administrative and managerial staff in accordance to the
needs of expansion and the one-off professional service fees
relating to the listing of the Company. Therefore, the
administrative and other operating expenses to total revenue
increased from 7.7% in 2010 to 7.9% in 2011.

Finance costs

QOur finance costs are primarily consisted of interest and
administrative fees charged to our interest-bearing bank
borrowings. Total finance costs decreased from RMB6.4
million in 2010 to RMB1.5 million in 2011 (representing a
reduction of 75.8%) as it is the Group’s prudence financing
strategy to maintain the bank borrowings at a low level. As at
31 December 2011, there were no bank borrowings while the
bills payable amounted to RMB62.3 million.

THREMKLEREE
TEREEMEERITEZRREAR
EETBREIMNFHNE LA
- ZEZREREENRBER
K -EZRREGRAS —MHL
ERXCNER - BEARARL
MHEEXREERAREMHFIER
X oo 1T H 48 & B X 12010
FMAREK26.7E &L £2011
FPOARMSSIBE T EIEA
106.4% - B EEMEZRR
THREERABEINAESER
MBERUARBEAQNR TR —
KEBERFEERR - Bt
TEREEMEERTHARAZ
Lt 120104 H7.7% 18 &= 2011 4F
#17.9% o

B 7% B <

MR ATERRRAEETNE
BITERBBRNFERITHRE
BB ABR2010FH AR
¥e4E ETLH L E2011F KA
R¥1585 8 T CREAT75.8%)
BAEAEEEFEKFERITER
B 22 18 B0 & SR RS FT 2K ° 2011 4F
12A318 AEBEWERITHF
HmMENEEREAEARKG23H

+ —
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Profit from continuing operations and dividend

The profit from continuing operations for the year ended 31
December 2011 grew by 190.0% to RMB273.7 million as
compared with RMB94.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2010. No interim dividend for the first half of the
year of 2011 was declared to the shareholder. For the year
ended 31 December 2011, the directors have proposed a
final dividend of HK8.4 cents (equivalent to approximately
RMB6.8 cents) per share, subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Key financial ratios
The following table sets forth certain of our major financial
ratios as at the date for the year indicated:

Current ratio mEN X

Quick ratio RELE =

Inventory turnover days FERERH
Debtors’ turnover days JFE W BR SR B 82 B 2
Creditors’ turnover days FEREREAERH
Gearing ratio BEE

REFELSEXEBRNAENR K
=]

H E=2011F12A318 IE F E -
RERBBELEEBENAFNBHEHE
2010F 12 AB1IH IEFEM AR
0448 B LB K190.0%E AR
#273.7E B Lo AR A I & W
% 5 k2011 4 [ £ ¥ F &)/ 5
f% 8 o ME £2011F12A31H It
FE - EFEZCLERKNRBRE
84BN GEERN O ARS8
D) AN TR ERERER

RBAFARG LK -
FEHKLER
TRENANEBERATFEERBH
METEEP B X
5.86 timesf& 1.97 timesf&
5.26 timesfZ 1.75 timesf
105.3 daysH 122.6 daysH
103.5 daysH 99.0 daysH
119.9 daysH 113.4 daysH
- 18.5%
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Working capital and working capital management

The inventory turnover of the Group was 105 days for the
year ended 31 December 2011 as compared to 123 days for
the year ended 31 December 2010. The improvement of
inventory turnover days is due to the continuous monitoring
of our production process and inventory level throughout the
year. The Group’s debtors’ turmnover (including both trade
debtors and bills receivables) was 104 days for the year
ended 31 December 2011 as compared to 99 days for the
year ended 31 December 2010. The increase in the debtors’
turnover days is due to the discretion given to the customers
in order to support their expansion to the second- and
third-tier cities. The Group generally allows average credit
periods of 90 days to customers. The Group’s creditors’
turnover (including both trade payables and bills payables)
was 120 days for the year ended 31 December 2011 as
compared to 113 days for the year ended 31 December
2010. The creditors’ turnover days remains stable in 2011.
Credit periods granted by the Group’s suppliers were
approximately 90 days. The overall working capital cycle has
been reduced from 109 days to 89 days mainly because of
the improvement in inventory turnover days.

The Group’s primary objectives when it is managing its capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for its
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost. The Group
actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholders returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

EEEEhEEESER
ANt B A £2011 128318 1k
FEMTERAEB & A1058 ¢
im& £2010F12A318 IFFE
B1I2ZA - FEAE B HN N EH
THRAEBEREEFERFSEE
THEERERGFERKFERME - K
EEEH EZ20011F12A318 1L F
EMmEBEFRAEAH(BEE
FEWER R EWER) 5104
H: & £2010F12 8318 I+
F[EZ AR - EWER N AE A&
B ERGTEFPEIBREN
TRESR-ZBR-EGHRTEER
BB - AEE —RBAFAE
FIRHEOBEMFEHEER - &
BH EZ2011F12A31B8 IEFE
MENERABIBE(REES
JEMRERENER) B1208 -
& 2201012 A31 8 I &
A113H - BN EBERFE AHR
01N FHIFRTE - AEBEMHEE
BT RMEERRAN A0H - 28
EEESEHEHRIQBRIE
80H NETEMNFERAEAY
REFTBL -

AEBERESNIERERR
BBBRARKTETEMBERT
BYAGEXNAREGHRENT A
REAEEFBELENREND AU
18 7 5% 1B m] 4 4 () s SR BB A [
KAE A S AEEREN S -
AEEERERENREEEE
AT EREAIREUAERKFEE
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R AR BB B
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Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had net current assets
of RMB808.9 million (2010: RMB228.0 million) of which cash
and bank deposits were RMB648.8 million (2010: RMB121.7
million). Total bank borrowings as at 31 December 2011 was
nil (2010: RMB98.8 million) while the bills payables was
RMB62.3 million (2010: RMB77.3 million). Bank borrowings
and bills payables were mainly used for working capital
management and/or finance the purchases of the Group. The
Group’s gearing ratio as at 31 December 2011 (total bank
borrowings divided by total assets) was 0% (2010: 18.5%).
The Group’s transactions and the monetary assets are
principally denominated in Renminbi. The Group has not
experienced any material difficulties or effects on its
operations or liquidity as a result of fluctuations in currency
exchange rates during the year. The Group adopts centralized
financing and treasury policies in order to ensure the Group’s
funding is utilized efficiently. Conservative approach is
adopted in monitoring foreign exchange exposure and
interest rate risk. The Group’s liquidity position remains strong
and the Group possesses sufficient cash and available
banking facilities to meet its commitments and working
capital requirements. This strong cash position enables the
Group to explore investment and business development
opportunities when expanding its market share in China.

ABES BHERRER
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Capital expenditure and capital commitments

There are no material capital expenditure and capital
commitments during the year ended 31 December 2011 and
as at 31 December 2011.

Foreign exchange risk management

Most of the sales and purchases of the Group are settled in
Renminbi, which is not freely convertible into foreign
currencies. The fluctuation of Renminbi during the year did
not have any adverse effect on the Group’s results. Besides,
the Group will conduct periodic review of its exposure to
foreign exchange risk.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2011, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had a workforce of
about 1,037 people. Salaries of employees are maintained at
competitive level and are reviewed annually, with close
reference to the relevant labour market and economic
situation. The Group has adopted share option schemes
whereby employees of the Group are granted options to
acquire shares in the Company. Good relationship has been
maintained between the Group and its employees. The Group
also provides internal training to staff and pays out bonuses
based upon staff performance and profits of the Group.

BRI REREKE
HE20M11F12A3MBIEFE R
MR2011F12 8318 » A&EE T &
ERERAT RERNHEE -
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AEBEABOBEEHUAARES
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IXRBEAEEFNBEEI N ES -

EDHBBEBERAR 20116F#HK 47



Management Discussion and Analysis

E12 25T K 7 iR

Looking Ahead

Despite of the European debt crisis, low single-digit economic
growth rate in developed countries and reduction of forecast GDP
growth to 7.5% by PRC government, we are still optimistic about
the future development of the indoor sportswear industry, especially
in China. The average growth rate of indoor sportswear industry is
expected to be 24% in the coming few years. In order to capture
the growth, the Group will use our best endeavors to accomplish
the following tasks in the coming years.

Continuous brand building and enhancement

The Group strives to enhance our international and professional
image in order to promote “Healthy, Fashionable and Active
Lifestyle”. Therefore, we will continue to allocate a significant
portion of our resources to brand building and maintenance.
Different promotion and advertising events including events
sponsorships, media advertising and onsite marketing will be
continued in order to maintain the first-mover advantages over the
other competitors. Different from general sportswear market, indoor
sportswear market is consisted of several niche markets including
swimwear, fitness wear and sports underwear markets with higher
gross profit margin and hence, a professional high-end brand
image is important to us. We expect to have more and more
advertising and promotions in the forthcoming future, especially
after the extension of sales and distribution channels in second-
and third-tier cities.

&2 AR R

BEBBEAREE FEBERCEE
REAL 2 ERHEE - B EBE
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E12 B 5T K iR

Expansion of sales and distribution networks

In view of the increasing demands from second- and third-tier
cities, we plan to further expand our retail outlets through
distributors and sub-distributors in department stores, professional
retail outlets and Hosa specialty stores. Because of our brand
positioning and target customers of mid-to-high income customers,
department stores are still our major distribution channels in the
foreseeable future. Apart from this, we plan to focus on upgrading
and expanding the size of certain retail outlets as we believe that
this will further enhance the brand image of the Group. At the same
time, we will increase our spending in support of our sales and
distribution networks.

Strengthening our research development
capabilities

The success of a company depend not only the brand image and
distribution networks but also the quality of the products as they
are closely related to each other. In 2012, we aim to commence
operation of a new in-house research, design and development
center headquartered in Beijing. The location of such research
center has been decided and we expect that it will commence
operation in the second half of 2012. We also plan to conduct
research projects with external collaborators to develop new
technologies for improving our products in their functionality, quality
and style. We believe that our strengthened research, design and
development capabilities will also bolster our efforts to optimize our
product variety and augment our product differentiation. As at 31
December 2011, the number of staff in our research and
development team increased to 89.
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Directors and Senior Management

ESkFRERE

Directors ==

The Board is responsible and has general powers for the management
and conduct of the business of the Group. The Board currently consists
of seven directors (the “Directors”, each a “Director”), including four
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. The

BEE -

EEQUAKEXRBZEENBRFARR
EYEHEA-—REEBRE -EFSEAMH
tREZ(EFDAEAX BREOZHRTES
R=ZZ2BIUFATES TR ARE

following table sets forth information regarding members of the Board. EEKEMNELR -
Name Appointment Date Age Position Roles and Responsibilities
mA ZEAH Fie B AERBE
Mr. Shi Hongliu 2 September 2010 46 chairman and corporate strategic planning
executive Director and overall business
development of the Group
B AR S A 20109 A 2H EERMMITES 75 B O £b SR B AR &I AN
BEEBERE
Mr. Shi Hongyan 2 September 2010 43 vice chairman, developing and implementing
chief executive officer operation plans,
and executive Director and monitoring the
overall manufacturing
activities of the Group
B 6 JE 5t A 20109 A 2H BEER TREHEE ZEEMNERASED
BITE=S EEENEERR
HERE
Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong 2 September 2010 45  executive Director corporate investment and
financing activities of
the Group
AR E 20104F9 H2H HITES REBENRFRBMEEE
Mr. Zhao Yan 2 September 2010 43  executive Director implementing and overseeing
development plans,
administration,
human resources,
management and
information systems of
the Group
fizh b 201059 H2H WITESR BETRTEASED

TRAT ) THBAE -
ANER -EER
ERRG
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Elirectclrs ancl SEFliDF Management

Name

%#

Appointment Date
ZEHH

Age
FiR

Position

B

Roles and Responsibilities
ABERBE

Ms. Ko Yuk Lan 23 November 2011

mEBEzL 20114211 A23H

Mr. Sun Ruizhe 7 June 2011

RIG T L& 20116 A7H

Mr. Yao Ge 7 June 2011

PhX Lt 20116 A7H
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independent
non-executive Director

BUYFRTES

independent
non-executive Director

BUFATES

independent
non-executive Director

BUIFATESR

attending meetings of the
Board to perform duties,
but not participating in
the day-to-day management
of the business operations
of the Group
HFEEEEGRUBIT
B BErg2 /\Nil
XBLENBT

attending meetings of the
Board to perform duties,
but not participating in
the day-to-day management
of the business operations
of the Group
HFEEEE SR INETT
B 1ET\E 2 /\Nil
XBEEMNHE

attending meetings of the
Board to perform duties,
but not participating in
the day-to-day management
of the business operations
of the Group
HFEEEEGRUBIT
B EBETE2 /\Zii‘il
XKEENEE




Directors and Senior Management

ESkeERRE

Executive Directors -

Mr. Shi Hongliu

Aged 46, is the founder of the Hosa™ brand. He was appointed as the
chairman and executive Director of the Company on 2 September 2010.
Mr. Shi has over 27 years of experience in the apparel industry and is
primarily responsible for the corporate strategic planning and overall
business development of the Group. From 1983 to 1996, he was a sole
proprietor in the apparel industry where he primarily engaged in
distributing sportswear for women in Beijing, Shanghai and Guangzhou.
From 1996 to 2011, he assumed various positions at Fujian Province
Jinjiang City Haosha Garments Co., Ltd. (“Haosha Garments”). From
September 1996 to March 2000, he was the chief brand manager of
Haosha Garments responsible for formulating, implementing brand
strategy and improving the competitiveness of Hosa™ brand. From
March 2000 to March 2006, he was the general manager of Haosha
Garments responsible for developing and implementing business
development strategies and overseeing the overall administrative and
business activities of this company. From March 2006 to February 2011,
he was the supervisor of Haosha Garments. Since November 1997, he
has been a director of Haosha International (H.K.) Limited (“Haosha H.K.”)
and is responsible for overlooking the operation, development strategy as
well as corporate investment activities of Haosha H.K. Since October
2005, being one of the founders of Haosha Industry (Fujian) Co., Ltd.
(“Haosha Industry”), he has been the chairman of the board responsible
for overseeing the operation and investment activities of Haosha Industry
and general manager since January 2011. Mr. Shi Hongliu is a brother of
Mr. Shi Hongyan. Apart from being a director of the Company, Mr. Shi
had not been a director of any listed company in the past three years.

Mr. Shi was selected as one of the “Top Ten Meritorious Entrepreneurs”
(T ARIHEDEZ) at China’s International Fashion Week by China
National Textile and Apparel Council (7 B4 4% T ¥ 1% €) in 2007, and “Brand
China Person of the Year (Apparel Industry)” (5 kA B (ARZE1T2)FEE AY)
by Brand China Industry Alliance (5 & BIZE 28 88) in 2010. He is also
the honorary chairman of the Chamber of Commerce of Jinjiang in
Shanghai (E8ETRAEHESR).

Mr. Shi completed a diploma program for general managers of
enterprises (24532 :R1%) of China Europe International Business School (FF
X B BR T 75 E2P5%) in December 2008.
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Mr. Shi Hongyan

Aged 43, was appointed as the vice chairman, chief executive officer and
executive Director of the Company on 2 September 2010. Mr. Shi
Hongyan has over 20 years of experience in the apparel industry and is
primarily responsible for developing and implementing operation plans,
and monitoring the overall manufacturing activities of the Group. From
1988 to 1996, he was a sole proprietor in the apparel industry where he
primarily engaged in distributing sportswear for women in Beijing,
Shanghai and Guangzhou. From 1996 to 2011, he assumed various
positions at Haosha Garments. From September 1996 to March 2000,
he was the director of Haosha Garments responsible for establishing
management systems and overseeing the administrative and business
operations. From March 2000 to March 2006, he was the chief
production manager responsible for formulating and implementing the
production plans and supervising the production process. From March
2006 to February 2011, he was the director and general manager of
Haosha Garments. Since October 2005, he has been the vice chairman
of the board of Haosha Industry. And from October 2005 to January
2011, he was the general manager of Haosha Industry where he was
responsible for implementing production plans and overseeing the
production operation. Since January 2011, he has been the vice general
manager of Haosha Industry. Mr. Shi Hongyan is a brother of Mr. Shi
Hongliu. Apart from being a director of the Company, Mr. Shi had not
been a director of any listed company in the past three years.

Mr. Shi Hongyan currently assumes leadership roles in various
institutions, the details of which are set out in tabular format below.

Terms of Office Position
T8 BB 1z

it 78 JE % &
435%  R2010F9A2B EZ X A KRR ARl
EER THERKRANTESE - HBERLE
ERETEREBB0FLHR TEAE
FENEBASENEEFEUARESE
BE 4 E S E) o 619884 1996 4F » 1 & AR
ETENEBLEEE TERER - L£E
REMMELHE TR EDRE - #£1996F
F0MF MR EDRXIETS BB -
#1996 FF9 A £ 20004F 3 A E D &K
EE AEFTEBRRAREETHRME
% 8 o #2000 3 3 £=2006F 3 A - b IE
FEEBKE BESENMEEEETS
MEBAEBRE - £2006F3 8 £20114F
A HMBEEESRRNEERELIE - 5
2005F 10 Mt —HEEEDEENE
&8 T % b 2005410 8 £2011 4 1
AEEESEXHEEE BEEREES
BIREELEELE -ME011F1AR—H
BEGESEXENIBEE -BEELESR
MAERTENRS BREFTALGNES
SN EBREA-CFUEESTARN LETA
RIME BT -

BEEELEBMNZEARBETLRER
i FERTERET -

Name of Institution

HEER

August 2004-now
2004 F8AES

member of the first standing committee

BEERBZE®ZE

vice chairman of the first council

BEEEEgRER

September 2005-now
2006F9R &S

February 2006—-now
200652 A &S

vice chairman of the eighth council
FNEEEgRIgR

July 2008—-now vice chairman of the second council

2008%F 7R ES F_EBEEeFER

August 2008-now vice chairman of the second council

2008F8HES F_EEBESEgEeR
2009—now member
2009F =45 %8

Quanzhou City Trademark Association

RMTERGE

Jinjiang City Textile and Apparel Association
BIMOBRERS

Jinjiang City Association of Industry and Commerce
ZEI I
Quanzhou City Association of Quality and

Technical Supervision
EMNTRERMEERE
Fujian Province Apparel Industry Association
BRERKERMITEDE

The Eleventh Jinjiang City Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
FEARBGHESERE T —EEITEZES
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Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. Shi Hongyan was selected as one of the First Outstanding Young
Enterprising Talents in Quanzhou (BER/MNBEFEFEIZEAA) in April
2005 and Outstanding Young Entrepreneurs of Fujian Province ({8 & &
FEFPZER) in November 2006.

Mr. Shi Hongyan completed a diploma program for chief executive
officers of enterprises ({42 & = R AFHE ) of the Economics College of
Peking University (3b R 2402 £ ) in 2003.

Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong

Aged 45, was appointed as an executive Director on 2 September 2010.
Mr. Zeng has over 14 years of experience in investment and finance and
is primarily responsible for corporate investment and financing activities
of the Group. From April 1985 to December 1987, he worked for the
human resource department of Jinjiang City Branch of Agricultural Bank
of China Co., Ltd. in Quanzhou of Fujian Province (FF B8 2 2R 1T
BATIEREE RMHEITZ1T) where he was responsible for human
resources management and counseling. From January 1988 to May
1997, he worked at the human resource department and was then
appointed as the deputy chief of personal savings department of Shishi
City Branch Bank (GA%iTx77) where he was responsible for
implementing internal regulations and procedures related to human
resources management, including organization, employees’ training,
welfare and incentive scheme. During May 1997 to July 2004, he was
branch supervisor of the Hanjiang Branch (#)T 5 2kz) and Baogai
Branch (BZ % &) of the same bank where he was responsible for the
overall operation of the two branches. From July 2004 to October 2007,
Mr. Zeng worked as the manager of the investment and finance
department of Haosha Garments, where he managed the investment
portfolio and expanded the financing channels of this company. Since
October 2007, he has been the manager of the investment and finance
department of Haosha Industry, where he was responsible for
implementing and monitoring strategic corporate investment and
financing activities. Apart from being a director of the Company, Mr. Zeng
had not been a director of any listed company in the past three years.

Mr. Zeng received his college diploma in finance from Central Radio and
TV University (P REFERAL) in May 2004. He was qualified as an
assistant economist (BNIEALERT) by the Evaluation Committee of
Professional and Technical post of Quanzhou City Branch of Agricultural
Bank of China (FEIREBITRMTATEERMBEETEZESR) in
December 1990.
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Mr. Zhao Yan

Aged 43, was appointed as an executive Director on 2 September 2010.
He has over 20 years of experience in corporate management and is
primarily responsible for implementing and overseeing development
plans, administration, human resources, management and information
systems of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhao held various
positions, including product designer, IT manager, project manager,
research institute director and etc, at Haier Group Corporation (& & &
73A]) and its subsidiaries for approximately 12 years. From August 1998
to February 2002, he was the general manager of Haier 3C Chain Co.,
Ltd. (B#M3CIEBHEAR A 7]). From March 2002 to March 2003, he was
the special assistant to the general manager at Shanghai Microtek
Technology Co., Ltd. (£ &EHE B R A 7]). From March to December
2008, he was the president of Shanghai Hongtusanbao Technology Co.,
Ltd. (BB EBE=REHER A 7). From December 2003 to August
2005, he was appointed as a deputy general manager of Shanghai
Youtong Mobile Technology Co., Ltd. (/& BBEBEIF AR A ).
From September 2005 to July 2007, Mr. Zhao was the special assistant
to the chairman of the board of directors of Haosha H.K. and has been
the vice chief executive officer since July 2007. Since October 2007, he
has been the vice chief executive officer of Haosha Industry. Apart from
being a director of the Company, Mr. Zhao had not been a director of
any listed company in the past three years.

Mr. Zhao has also received various awards from different accredited
institutions, including the “National Technological Achievement
Certificate” (FIRXBHIR RTEA EHEE) in September 1995, the first prize
of “Shandong Province Excellent Achievement Prize for Computer
Applications” (ILFREFTEMKEREFHARE) in February 1996, the
second prize of “China Light Industry Technological Progress Prize” (1
8T ZRIER T P8~ 5 48) in December 1996, the first prize of
“Qingdao Technological Progress Prize” (& & Rl RT3 2 18 (— % 15))
in March 1997 and the prize of “Second Qingdao Youth Science and
Technology Prize” (£ /88 & 5 FEHE ) in February 2000. He was
selected as the “Advanced Worker in Marketing Planning” (F73517 #4552l
ST 1EE) of Qingdao Three Major Projects of Industrial System
Marketing (8 & LE RIS = K TH2”) in March 2000.

Mr. Zhao received his bachelor’s degree in electronic engineering from
Shanghai Jiaotong University (L/8238AE) in July 1990. He also
completed the 4-month mid-level business management courses from
the School of Economics and Trade of Qingdao University of Science
Technology (& &FEHEAE), (formerly known as Qingdao Chemical
Engineering College (581t T %)) in January 2000. Mr. Zhao was
qualified as a senior engineer in November 2000 by Qingdao Personnel
Bureau (5 5T AER).
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Independent Non-Executive Directors =

Ms. Ko Yuk Lan

Aged 50, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
23 November 2011. She has over 25 years of experience in financial
management and corporate finance and had worked in an international
accounting firm and other companies listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange. She is currently the chief financial officer and company
secretary of China Lilang Limited (7 EIF BB R 2 7]) (stock code 1234).
Ms. Ko is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants.
Apart from being a director of the Company, Mr. Ko had not been a
director of any listed company in the past three years. Ms. Ko graduated
from Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a professional diploma in
management accountancy in November 1984.
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Mr. Sun Ruizhe

Aged 48, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 7
June 2011. He was the vice president of China Textile Information Center
(PR & (E B L) from June 1999 to April 2002 and has been acting
as the president since May 2002. Mr. Sun has also been acting as the
president of China Textiles Development Center (44%E ffiZEAH 1))
since June 1999. In addition, Mr. Sun is the vice chairman of China
National Textile and Apparel Council (FBl%74% T %#1#32) and acted as
the vice president of the information department of China National Textile
and Apparel Council (1 EI#7 4% T3 & (5 £86) from January 2001 to
April 2002. From December 1998 to May 1999, Mr. Sun was the director
of China Textile Information Institute (FF B 45 & T BHFEAT), the vice
president of China Textile Information Network Center (F B4k e (=
B ) and the president of China Textiles Development Center (FF B45
ke i FI RS D). Apart from being a director of the Company,
Mr. Sun had not been a director of any listed company in the past three
years.

Mr. Sun has also been a member of the National Technical Commission
of Color Standardization (ZBIEEEIZELFTZ 8€) since September
2004. He was selected as the “Advanced Worker in National Textile
Industrial System” (24T ¥ R4 T1EE) by National Textile
Industry Administration (BEIX##LH4/E) in May 2000 and was
granted the special government allowance by the state council in October
2004.

Mr. Sun received his bachelor’'s degree in dyeing and finishing
engineering from Donghua University (22 A £2), formerly known as East
China Institute of Textile Engineering (2£ 5 4745 T £5%), in July 1985. He
has been a qualified senior engineer since November 2001.

Mr. Yao Ge

Aged 49, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 7
June 2011. After his graduation in September 1994 to late 1994, Mr. Yao
was independently exploring the development of Japanese traditional
garments and its overall apparel market in Japan. In December 1994, he
returned to China and independently explored the Chinese apparel
market and industrial textile structure. In October 1996, he started
working at the marketing centre of China Fashion Association (1 B AR5
ETAD7 @), and was later promoted to the deputy secretary general in
December 1999 and the supervisor of the marketing centre in February
2001. He was appointed as the deputy director of China’s Professional
Fashion Models Committee (FFEIBGZEMREEFEZES) in July 2002.
Since May 2003, he has been the chairman of the board of directors of
Beijing Oriental Bentley Culture Development Co., Ltd. (it REITEFIX
L3R L), Apart from being a director of the Company, Mr. Yao had
not been a director of any listed company in the past three years.
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Mr. Yao received silver award for Tokyo 21st Clothing Fashion Paintings
and Crafts Exhibition (R EE21/EREHRITEMF TERE) in 1993 and
recognition award for Japanese Apparel Fashion Design Contest (H Z<Ak

fRTTARETEEE) in 1994,

Mr. Yao received his college diploma in journalism from Shenyang Radio
and Television University (#F5EEEHREAZ) in November 1988 and
went to Japan for advanced study in 1990. He completed a two-year
Japanese language course at Asahi International School (28 B BI& £4%)
in September 1992 and a two years’ advanced study in garment design
at Tokyo Shimizu Institute (RFUE/KEZFT) in September 1994 and
received a certificate in garment design.

Senior Management =

Mr. Lai Ho Man, Dickson

Aged 38, was appointed as the chief financial officer and company
secretary of the Company on 14 February 2011. Mr. Lai is primarily
responsible for the overall financial affairs of the Group. From November
2007 to March 2011, Mr. Lai was the group financial controller of
AsiaAlum Group. From January 2007 to October 2007, he was the
manager of the finance and accounting department of Brigantine
Services Limited. From May 2005 to January 2007, he worked as the
manager of the financial control department of CITIC Pacific Ltd. Mr. Lai
worked at Kerry Beverage Services Ltd. as an assistant accounting
manager from December 2003 to May 2005 and, from September 1996
to October 2003, worked as an assistant manager in KPMG, where he
was mainly responsible for the external auditing, initial public offering and
due diligence projects of financial institution sector. Mr. Lai had not been
a director of any listed company in the past three years.

Mr. Lai received a bachelor’s degree in accountancy from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 1996. Mr. Lai also received a master’s degree in
business administration from the University of Birmingham in 2008. He is
a Fellow Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He is also a member of the Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong.
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Mr. Chen Rui

Aged 42, is the sales director and is primarily responsible for the
expansion of the market and distribution network of the Group. He has
approximately 13 years of experience in managing corporate sales affairs.
From May 1997 to March 2000, he was the regional general manager of
the Shanghai subsidiary of Beijing Hualin Corporate Group (Mei Fule)
Ltd., Co. Qb R % 5 E (=R 44 B PR A 7). From April 2000 to March
2005, he was the sales director and promoted to the vice general
manager and executive general manager of Tingmei Group Healthcare
Technology Ltd., Co. (f#3 & BER R AR A T). From March 2005 to
March 2006, he worked as the vice general manager of Shanghai
Gentlemen Apparel Ltd., Co. (Cartelo) (/& 4+ AREFE R A B)(R w5468
£2)). From April 2006 to June 2007, he was the general manager of
business division of Maoren International (H.K.) Ltd., Co. (8 A BB (&%)
AR 7]). From June 2007 to December 2008, he was the consultant of
Huangjia Limei underwear at Beijing Century Oumeiya Technology Ltd.,
Co. Gt R4 BEHRHL AR A R]). From March 2009 to March 2010,
he was the vice general manager and sales director of Shanghai
Duocaimian Apparel Ltd., Co. (L/#ZEFRREFER A A]). Since
November 2010, Mr. Chen has been the sales director of Haosha
Industry, where he is primarily responsible for the expansion of the market
and distribution network. Mr. Chen had not been a director of any listed
company in the past three years.

Mr. Chen received his bachelor’'s degree in food engineering from
Shanghai Ocean University (/88 F K &), (formerly known as Shanghai
Fisheries University (87K AE), in July 1991,
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Mr. Zhang Dingxiong

Aged 47, is the operation director and is primarily responsible for the daily
sales operation of the Group, including merchandise management,
products display, store design and decoration, sales training and sales
analysis. He has approximately 16 years of experience in corporate sales
operation. From September 1987 to May 1992, he was a teacher at
Fujian Architecture and Engineering College (@324 B T2 E30%). From
June 1992 to May 1997, he worked as the trade specialist at Kun Peng
Trading Ltd., Co. (B#SE ZBR A 7). From May 1997 to March 2001,
he was the regional manager at Fujian Huafu Trading Ltd., Co. ({8 #FE+E
& 5 AR A F). From April 2001 to April 2003, he worked as the regional
manager at Beijing Aiya (formerly known as Beijing Haosha Apparel Co.,
Ltd.). From August 2005 to July 2008, he was the regional manager of
Baosheng Daoji (Beijing) Trading Company Limited (BBt R)E 5
AFRR/AR]). From August 2008 to March 2009, he was the deputy
manager of Wenzhou City Yijia Sports Commercial Complex Company
Limited (EMH—REEEMARAR]). From April 2009 to December
2010, he also worked as the director of brand development department
of Shanghai Baoyuan Sports Goods Trading Co., Ltd. (L8 ERES A
M B AR AR). Since December 2010, Mr. Zhang has been the
operation director of Haosha Industry, where he is primarily responsible
for the daily sales operation. Mr. Zhang had not been a director of any
listed company in the past three years.

Mr. Zhang received his bachelor’s degree in philosophy from Nanjing
University (F 7 AZ) in July 1987.

Mr. Liu Tongjie (alias Mr. Liu Tongjie (2[EIF&))

Aged 37, is the production director of the Company and is primarily
responsible for the procurement and production management of the
Group. He has approximately 10 years of experience in product
procurement and planning. From 2001 to 2007, he joined Haosha
Garments and had assumed various positions. He was the manager of
the planning department from February 2001 to August 2003, manager
of the procurement department from September 2003 to November
2006, director of the product prototype department from December
2006 to September 2007. Since October 2007, Mr. Liu has been the
production director of the garment production division of Haosha
Industry, where he manages product supply, production, technology
improvement and quality control during the production process and
formulates production plans. Mr. Liu had not been a director of any listed
company in the past three years.

Mr. Liu received his college diploma in sericulture from Anhui Agricultural
University (ZHUZ 3 K2) in July 1996.
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Mr. Wen Quan

Aged 36, is the product research and development director and is
primarily responsible for product design, research and development of
the Group. He has approximately 10 years of experience in product
design, research and development. From 2001 to 2007, he joined
Haosha Garments and had assumed various positions. He was the
director of the technology department from August 2001 to September
2005, manager of the product development department from September
2005 to October 2007. Since October 2007, Mr. Wen has been the
director of the research and development center of Haosha Industry,
where he is responsible for product positioning, market research and
analysis for the products, formulating and implementing research plans
and product cost budgeting. Mr. Wen had not been a director of any
listed company in the past three years.

Mr. Wen received his college diploma in costume design from Wuhan
Textile Institute of Technology (B/% 47 4 T £267) in June 1997.
Company Secretary -

Mr. Lai Ho Man, Dickson is the chief financial officer and company

secretary of the Company. Please refer to the paragraph headed “—
Senior Management” above for Mr. Lai’s biography.
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The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate
governance practices and procedures with a view to being a transparent
and responsible organization which is open and accountable to the
Shareholders. The Board strives for adhering to the principles of
corporate governance and has adopted sound corporate governance
practices to meet the legal and commercial standards, focusing on areas
such as internal control, fair disclosure and accountability to all
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) to ensure the
transparency and accountability of all operations of the Company. The
Company believes that effective corporate governance is an essential
factor to create more value for the Shareholders. The Board will continue
to review and improve the corporate governance practices of the Group
from time to time to ensure that the Group is led by an effective Board in
order to optimize return for the Shareholders.

The Company has complied with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) throughout the year ended 31 December 2011.

The Board

The Board consists of seven Directors, comprising four executive
Directors, and three independent non-executive Directors. The executive
Directors are Mr. Shi Hongliu, Mr. Shi Hongyan, Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong and
Mr. Zhao Yan. The independent non-executive Directors are Ms. Ko Yuk
Lan, Mr. Sun Ruizhe and Mr. Yao Ge. The functions and duties conferred
on the Board include convening Shareholders’ meetings and reporting on
the work of the Board to the Shareholders at Shareholders’ meetings as
may be required by applicable laws, implementing resolutions passed at
Shareholders’ meetings, determining the Company’s business plans and
investment plans, formulating the Company’s annual budget and final
accounts, formulating the Company’s proposals for dividend and bonus
distributions as well as exercising other powers, functions and duties as
conferred on it by the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”)
and applicable laws. The senior management is delegated the authority
and responsibilities by the Board for the day-to-day management and
operations of the Group. The Board meets regularly to review the financial
and operating performance of the Company, and considers and
approves the overall strategies and policies of the Company. The
composition of the Board is well-balanced with the Directors having
sound industry knowledge, extensive corporate and strategic planning
experience and/or expertise relevant to the business of the Group. The
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors bring a
variety of experience and expertise to the Company.
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The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from
each of its independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. Based on the contents of such confirmation, the
Company considers that all of the independent non-executive Directors
are independent and that they have met the specific independence
guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All Directors have separate and independent access to the Company’s
senior management to fulfill their duties and, upon reasonable request, to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at
the Company’s expense. All Directors also have access to the company
secretary who is responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures, and
all applicable rules and regulations, are followed. An agenda and
accompanying Board/committee papers are distributed to the Directors/
Board committee members with reasonable notice in advance of the
meetings. Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of Board
committees, which records in sufficient detail the matters considered by
the Board and decisions reached, including any concerns raised by
Directors or dissenting views expressed, are kept by the company
secretary and are open for inspection by Directors.

The Company has subscribed appropriate and sufficient insurance
coverage on directors’ liabilities in respect of legal actions taken against
Directors arising out of corporate activities.

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Company, and considers and approves the overall
strategies and policies of the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The chairman and chief executive officer of the Company are two distinct
and separate positions, which are held by Mr. Shi Hongliu and Mr. Shi
Hongyan, respectively, both being executive Directors.
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Company Secretary

The company secretary (the “Company Secretary”) of the Company is
Mr. Lai Ho Man, Dickson. Details of the biography of the Company
Secretary are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” of the annual report of which this corporate governance
report forms part. The Company Secretary has been informed of the
requirements under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules and their compliance
with such requirement for the year ending 31 December 2012 will be
reported in the corporate governance report in the 2012 annual report of
the Company.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company and is appointed for an initial term of
three years commencing from 16 December 2011.

In accordance with article 84 of the Articles, at each annual general
meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is
not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one
third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall
be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every
three years.

Board Committees

As an integral part of sound corporate governance practices, the Board
has established the following Board committees to oversee the particular
aspects of the Group’s affairs. Each of these committees is consisted
wholly of or of a majority of independent non-executive Directors.
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Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) was
established, in compliance with Rules 3.21 and 3.22 of the Listing Rules,
with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise the
financial reporting process and internal control system of the Group and
to provide advice and comments to the Board. The members meet
regularly with the external auditors and the Company’s senior
management for the review, supervision and discussion of the
Company’s financial reporting and internal control procedures and ensure
that management has discharged its duty to have an effective internal
control system. The Audit Committee comprises three members, namely
Ms. Ko Yuk Lan, Mr. Sun Ruizhe and Mr. Yao Ge, all of whom are
independent non-executive Directors. Ms. Ko Yuk Lan, who has
appropriate professional qualifications and experience in accounting
matters, was appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee.

Pursuant to the first meeting of the Audit Committee on 28 March 2012,
the Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011, including the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, selection and
appointment of the external auditors. No meeting was held by the Audit
Committee during the year ended 31 December 2011 because the
Company only became listed in December 2011.

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established with written terms of reference in
compliance with the CG Code. During the year ended 31 December
2011, the Remuneration Committee had been chaired by Mr. Zhao Yan,
an executive Director, with two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Sun Ruizhe and Mr. Yao Ge, as members. Since 28 March
2012, Mr. Yao Ge has been appointed as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee in place of Mr. Zhao Yan. Mr. Zhao Yan
remains a member of the Remuneration Committee. The principal
responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to determine the
policies in relation to human resources management, to review the
compensation strategies, to determine the remuneration packages of
senior executives and managers, to approve the terms of the service
contract of the executive Directors, to assess the performance of the
executive Directors, to recommend and establish annual and long-term
performance criteria and targets as well as to review and supervise the
implementation of all executive compensation packages and employee
benefit plans. The Board expects the Remuneration Committee to
exercise independent judgment and ensures that executive Directors do
not participate in the determination of their own remuneration.
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Pursuant to the first meting of the Remuneration Committee on 28 March
2012, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed the remuneration
policy and structure relating to the Directors and senior management of
the Company. No meeting was held by the Remuneration Committee
during the year ended 31 December 2011 because the Company only
became listed in December 2011.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The Nomination Committee
is responsible for reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board, making recommendation to the Board on selection of candidates
for directorships, appointment, reappointment of Directors and Board
succession and assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors. During the year ended 31 December 2011, the
Nomination Committee had been chaired by Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong, an
executive Director, with two independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Sun Ruizhe and Mr. Yao Ge, as members. Since 28 March 2012, Mr.
Yao Ge has been appointed as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee in place of Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong. Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong remains
a member of the Nomination Committee.

Pursuant to the first meeting of the Nomination Committee on 28 March
2012, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board and assessed independence of the
independent non-executive Directors. No meeting was held by the
Nomination Committee during the year ended 31 December 2011
because the Company only became listed in December 2011.

Corporate Governance Function

The Company’s corporate governance function is carried out by the
Board pursuant to a set of written terms of reference adopted by the
Board in compliance with Code Provision D.3.1 of the CG Code, which
include (a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the board; (b)
to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the Group; (c)
to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop, review
and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees of the Group and the Directors; and (e) to review
the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
corporate governance report. Details of the work of the Board in relation
to the corporate governance function for the year ending 31 December
2012 will be disclosed in the corporate governance report in the
Company’s 2012 annual report.
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Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

The individual attendance record of each Director at the meetings of the
Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and general meetings of the Company during the year ended
31 December 2011 is set out below:

ERRESHERY

REZE2011FE12A3MBHIEFER &V E
EHRARREEZS  HENZBS FTWE
Bg RAZEENEBAREREHNE
A EREHNNIT

Board Audit Remuneration Nomination
Meeting Committee Committee Committee
EEEgER EtEEE yFMEESE REZES®
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Shi Hongliu Bt 3R 5 A
(Chairman of the Board) (EFEF)FE) 4/4 N/A/ANE N/A/N3E N/A/N3E
Mr. Shi Hongyan e HE 5 A 4/4 N/A/T 8 A N/A/ 8 A N/A/7 5 B
Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong =Mk AE 4/4 N/A/ANE N/A/7~ i 0/0
Mr. Zhao Yan IR LA 4/4 N/A/ANE 0/0 N/A/N3E
Independent BUIENTESE
non-executive Directors
Ms. Ko Yuk Lan BEMLZL 0/4 0/0 N/A/AN3E N/A/AN3E
Mr. Sun Ruizhe Rinih k& 3/4 0/0 0/0 0/0
Mr. Yao Ge R 3/4 0/0 0/0 0/0

None of the meetings set out above was attended by any alternate
Director.

Continuous Professional Development

The Directors have been informed of the requirement under Code
Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code regarding continuous professional
development. Details of how each Director complies with such
requirement for the year ending 31 December 2012 will be set out in the
corporate governance report in the Company’s 2012 annual report.

Compliance with the Model Code for Directors’
Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for securities transactions.
Specific enquiries have been made with all Directors, who have confirmed
that, during the period under review, they were in compliance with the
required provisions set out in the Model Code. All Directors declared that
they have complied with the Model Code for the year ended 31
December 2011.
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Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation of the
financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2011
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group at that date and of the Group’s results and cash flows for
the year then ended and are properly prepared on the going concern
basis in accordance with the applicable statutory requirements and
accounting standards. The statement of the external auditors of the
Company about their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements
is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report”.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The Company has appointed KPMG as the auditors of the Company.
The fees for the audit services provided by the auditors to the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2011 amounted to RMB1.2 million. The
total fees paid and payable to KPMG for the reporting accountant service
for the listing in 2011 was approximately RMB5.1 million.

The statement of the auditors of the Company concerning their
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of the Company
is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 92 to 93 of this
annual report.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective internal
control systems in order to safeguard the Group’s assets and
Shareholders’ interests, and review and monitor the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control and risk management systems on a regular
basis so as to ensure that internal control and risk management systems
in place are adequate. The Company has established written policies and
procedures applicable to all operating units to ensure the effectiveness of
internal controls. The Company also has a process for identifying,
evaluating, and managing the significant risks to the achievement of its
operational objective. This process is subject to continuous improvement
and was in place throughout 2011 and up to the date of this report. The
day-to-day operation is entrusted to the individual department, which is
accountable for its own conduct and performance, and is required to
strictly adhere to the policies set by the Board. The Company carries out
reviews on the effectiveness of the internal control systems from time to
time in order to ensure that they are able to meet and deal with the
dynamic and ever changing business environment.
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During the year under review, the Board has conducted a review and
assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
systems including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management for the year ended 31 December 2011. External consultants
were engaged to assist the Board to perform high-level review of the
internal control systems for its business operations and processes. Such
review covered the financial, compliance and operational controls as well
as risk management mechanisms and assessment was made by
discussions with the management of the Company and its external
auditors. The Board believes that the existing internal control system is
adequate and effective.

Shareholders’ Rights

How Shareholders can convene an extraordinary
general meeting and putting forward proposals at
Shareholders’ meetings

Pursuant to the Articles, any one or more Shareholder holding at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the secretary of the Company by mail at Room 4105-08, 41/F,
Sun Hung Kai Centre, 30 Harbour Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong, to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concemns to the Board by
addressing them to the secretary of the Company by mail at Room
4105-08, 41/F, Sun Hung Kai Centre, 30 Harbour Road, Wan Chai,
Hong Kong or by email at hosa@pordahavas.com. The Company
Secretary forwards communications relating to matters within the Board’s
direct responsibilities to the Board and communications relating to
ordinary business matters, such as suggestions, inquiries and customer
complaints, to the chief executive officer of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, there has been no significant
change in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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Communication with Shareholders

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining a clear, timely and
effective communication with the Shareholders and investors of the
Company. The Board also recognizes that effective communication with
its investors is critical in establishing investor confidence and to attract
new investors. Therefore, the Group is committed to maintaining a high
degree of transparency to ensure the investors of the Company and the
Shareholders will receive accurate, clear, comprehensive and timely
information of the Group through the publication of annual reports,
interim reports, announcements and circulars. The Company also
publishes all corporate communications on the Company’s website at
www.hosa.cn. The Board maintains regular dialogues with institutional
investors and analysts from time to time to keep them informed of the
Group’s strategy, operations, management and plans. The chairman of
the Board and members of various Board committees will attend the
annual general meeting of the Company to answer questions raised by
the Shareholders. The resolution of every important proposal will be
proposed at general meetings separately.

Voting at general meetings of the Company is conducted by way of poll
in accordance with the Listing Rules. The poll results will be announced
at general meetings and published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. In addition, the Company regularly meets
with institutional investors, financial analysts and financial media, and
promptly releases information related to any significant progress of the
Company, so as to promote the development of the Company through
mutual and efficient communications.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011.

Principal Activities

The Company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the design
and production of a wide range of mid-to-high end sportswear products,
including swimwear, fitness wear, sports underwear and accessories,
which are sold under the well-known Hosa™ brand.

Subsidiaries

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Group as at 31 December 2011
are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

Financial Statements

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 and the
state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out
in the financial statements on pages 94 to 98 of this annual report.

Dividends

The Board recommended a final dividend of HK8.4 cents (equivalent to
approximately RMB6.8 cents) per share for the year ended 31 December
2011, subject to approval by the Shareholders at the annual general
meeting to be held on 15 May 2012. Details of the dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2011 are set out in note 25(b) to the financial
statements.
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Reserves

Details of movements in reserves of the Company and the Group are set
out in note 25(a) to the financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

As at 31 December 2011, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law, Chapter
22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to approximately HK$562,558,000. Details of the distributable
reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2011 are set out in note
25(e) to the financial statements.

Charitable Donations

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2011 amounted to approximately RMB344,000 (2010:
RMB480,000).

Property, Plant and Equipment

Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2011 are set out in note 12 to the financial
statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the year

ended 31 December 2011 are set out in note 25(c) to the financial
statements.
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Directors
The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2011 were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Shi Hongliu (Chairman)
Mr. Shi Hongyan

Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong

Mr. Zhao Yan

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Ms. Ko Yuk Lan

Mr. Sun Ruizhe

Mr. Yao Ge

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from
each of the existing independent non-executive Directors in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all the
independent non-executive Directors are independent in accordance with
the Listing Rules.

Each of the executive Directors on the Board during the year ended 31
December 2011 had entered into a service contract with the Company
for an initial term of three years commencing from 16 December 2011
and thereafter may be terminated by not less than three months’ notice
in writing or payment in lieu of such notice served by either party on the
other. The service contracts are automatically renewed upon expiration.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors on the Board during the
year ended 31 December 2011 had entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing from 16
December 2011 and thereafter may be terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by the respective independent non-
executive Director on the Company, and by immediate notice in writing
served by the Company on the respective independent non-executive
Director.
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In accordance with article 84 of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong, Mr. Zhao Yan and Mr. Yao Ge will retire from the
Board by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set out
on pages 50 to 64 of this annual report.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed below, there was no contract of significance to which
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party,
and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the year ended 31 December
2011.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures

As at 31 December 2011, the Directors and the chief executive of the
Company had the following interests or short positions in the shares (the
“Shares”), underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”)) which have been notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Division 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO, including interests and short positions which the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company are taken and deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO, or which are required to be and are recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code:
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corporations
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Mr. Shi Hongyan Ho Born Investment Beneficial interests 26,233 — 26.23%
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Notes:

(1) Ho Born Investment Holdings Limited and Well Born Industrial Group Limited are
beneficially owned as to 49.851% by Mr. Shi Hongliu. Mr. Shi Hongliu is therefore
deemed to be interested in the aggregate of 983,808,000 Shares held by Ho Born
Investment Holdings Limited and Well Born Industrial Group Limited.

2) Yixin Investment Holdings Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong and Mr.
Zeng Shaoxiong is therefore deemed to be interested in 96,000,000 Shares held by
Yixin Investment Holdings Limited.

©)) Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong has been granted an option for 2,660,000 Shares under the pre-
IPO share option scheme adopted by the Company on 23 November 2011.

(4) Mr. Zhao Yan has been granted an option for 3,800,000 Shares under the pre-IPO
share option scheme adopted by the Company on 23 November 2011.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, none of the Directors
or the chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to have any
interests or short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO), which had been recorded in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or which had been
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

At no time was the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company (including their spouse and children
under 18 years of age) to hold any interest or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).
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Share Option Schemes

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme”) on 23 November 2011 for the purpose of giving
certain eligible persons an opportunity to have a personal stake in the
Company and motivating them to optimize their future performance and
efficiency to the Group and/or rewarding them for their past contributions,
and attracting and retaining, or otherwise maintaining on-going
relationships with, such eligible persons who are significant to and/or
whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the performance, growth
or success of the Group. Options to subscribe for an aggregate of
20,500,000 Shares were granted on 23 November 2011. The exercise
price per Share is HK$1.28, representing a discount of 20% to the global
offering price per Share. Save as disclosed below, no further options
were granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme prior to the Listing
Date. All options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme may
be exercised in the following manner:

Exercise period
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Anytime after the first anniversary of the Listing Date
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Anytime after the second anniversary of the Listing Date
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Anytime after the third anniversary of the Listing Date
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Details of the share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme as at 31 December 2011 are as follows:

R2011F12A31H  IRIFBH X AFEE R
ERETRRENEREOFBDOT

Outstanding as at
31 December 2011
M20115E12A31H

Name =% e R AT B2
Directors -}

Mr. Zhao Yan HIaLE 3,800,000
Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong DI A 2,660,000
Senior management SREEE

In aggregate A 3,400,000
Other employees Hitt{g g

In aggregate & H 8,640,000
Shareholders of distributors of the Company ZAAF]—REHEBFHRE

In aggregate A 2,000,000
Total 5t 20,500,000

No options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme were
exercised, lapsed or cancelled during the year ended 31 December
2011.

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 23 November 2011 for the purpose of giving certain eligible
persons an opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company and
motivating them to optimize their future performance and efficiency to the
Group and/or rewarding them for their past contributions, and attracting
and retaining, or otherwise maintaining on-going relationships with, such
eligible persons who are significant to and/or whose contributions are or
will be beneficial to the performance, growth or success of the Group.
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The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares
in issue as at the Listing Date, i.e. 1,600,000,000 Shares. The maximum
number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted under the Share Option Scheme to any one person (including
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the Shares in issue from time to time.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period as determined by the Board
and not exceeding 10 years from the date of the grant. There is no
minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised. Participants of the Share Option Scheme are required to pay
the Company HK$1.0 upon acceptance of the grant on or before 28
days after the offer date. The exercise price of the options is determined
by the Board in its absolute discretion and shall not be less than
whichever is the highest of:

(@  the nominal value of a Share;

(b)  the closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of offer; and

(c) the average closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years from the Listing Date, after which no further options will be granted
or offered but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall remain in
force and effect in all other respects. All options granted prior to the
termination of the Share Option Scheme and not then exercised shall
continue to be valid and exercisable subject to and in accordance with
the Share Option Scheme.

As at 31 December 2011, no option had been granted by the Board
under the Share Option Scheme.

Further details of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Share
Option Scheme are set out in note 23 to the financial statements.
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Arrangement for Directors to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed in “Share Option Schemes” above, at no time during
the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director of the
Company or their respective spouses or minor children, or were such
rights exercised by them, or was the Company, its holding company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debt securities (including debentures) of the Company or any other
body corporate.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the Company, as
at 31 December 2011, the persons or corporations (other than Director
or chief executive of the Company) who had interest or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company which were required to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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Notes:

(1) Mr Shi Hongliu and Mr. Shi Hongyan, executive Directors, are two of the directors of
the Ho Born Investment Holdings Limited and Well Born Industrial Group Limited.

2 Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong, an executive Director, is the sole director of Yixin Investment
Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company are not aware of any other person or
corporation having an interest or short position in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which would require to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 December 2011.

Continuing Connected Transactions

Haosha Industry, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company,
has entered into certain transactions with Haosha Garments.

Connected person

Haosha Garments is a limited liability company established in the PRC on
24 QOctober 1996, and is currently owned as to 55% by Mr. Shi Hongliu,
25% by Mr. Shi Hongyan, 10% by Mr. Shi Huangpao and 10% by Mr.
Shi Yanggiao. Mr. Shi Hongliu is an executive Director and is entitled to
exercise more than 30% of the voting power at general meetings of
Haosha Garments. Accordingly, Haosha Garments is an associate of Mr.
Shi Hongliu under Rule 1.01 of the Listing Rules and therefore a
connected person of the Company under Rule 14A.11 of the Listing
Rules.
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The continuing connected transactions

(@)

Procurement agreement with Haosha Garments

On 7 June 2011, Haosha Industry, an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of our Company, entered into a procurement agreement
with Haosha Garments, whereby Haosha Garments agreed to
supply its fabric products to Haosha Industry from time to time for
Haosha Industry to manufacture Hosa™ branded indoor sportswear
products. The procurement agreement is for a term from 1 January
2011 to 31 December 2013 renewable for a further three years at
the option of Haosha Industry subject to compliance with applicable
requirements of the Listing Rules. Haosha Industry has the right to
terminate the procurement agreement at any time before expiration
subject to compliance with the Listing Rules.

Haosha Garments has been a fabric products provider of the
Group and the Group expects itself to continue procuring fabric
products from Haosha Garments in view of their long-term business
relationship, which enables Haosha Garments to respond to the
order requests of the Group in a more prompt and accurate
manner compared with other independent suppliers of similar
products available in the market, as well as the proximity between
Haosha Garments and Haosha Industry, which helps reduce the
transportation costs. During the three financial years ended 31
December 2008, 2009, 2010, the Group broadened its product
offering from time to time and accordingly procured its fabric
products from a range of suppliers available in the market and
gradually decreased its procurement from Haosha Garments during
the same period. The prices at which the Group procures the fabric
products from Haosha Garments are based on terms that are
comparable to those available from independent suppliers of similar
products, on arm’s length negotiation and on normal commercial
terms.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group procured fabric
products of RMB1,663,000 from Haosha Garments to manufacture
Hosa™ branded indoor sportswear products and the amount of
procurement fees paid/payable to Haosha Garments was within the
annual cap of RMB2 million approved by the Stock Exchange for
the waiver from strict compliance with, among others, the reporting
and announcement requirements under the Listing Rules.
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(b)

]S

Processing Agreement with Haosha Garments

In light of the facts that Haosha Industry lacks the in-house facilities
for dyeing and printing its procured fabric products, Haosha
Industry entered into a processing agreement with Haosha
Garments on 7 June 2011, pursuant to which Haosha Garments
agreed to provide dyeing and printing services to Haosha Industry
from time to time on commercial terms. The processing agreement
is for a term from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2013 renewable
for a further period of three years at the option of Haosha Industry
subject to compliance with applicable requirements of the Listing
Rules. Haosha Industry has the right to terminate the processing
agreement at any time before expiration subject to compliance with
the Listing Rules.

Haosha Garments has been the processing service provider of the
Group and the Group expects itself to continue using processing
services provided by Haosha Garments in view of their long-term
business relationship, which enables Haosha Garments to respond
to the order requests of the Group in a more prompt and accurate
manner compared with other independent suppliers of similar
services available in the market, as well as the proximity between
Haosha Garments and Haosha Industry, which helps reduce the
transportation costs. The prices at which Haosha Garments
provides processing services to the Group are based on terms that
are comparable to those offered by independent suppliers of similar
services, on arm’s length negotiation and on normal commercial
terms.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group incurred
RMB26,155,000 for the processing services provided by Haosha
Garments and the amount of processing fees paid/payable to
Haosha Garments was within the annual cap of RMB29.2 million
approved by the Stock Exchange for the waiver from strict
compliance with, among others, the reporting and announcement
requirements under the Listing Rules.
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The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
abovementioned connected transactions between the Group and
Haosha Garments, and confirmed that such transactions were
entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i)  on normal commercial terms and on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available from independent third
parties; and

(i)  in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditors were engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The Company’s auditors have issued their
unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Group in this annual report in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by
the Company to the Stock Exchange. The auditors’ letter confirms
that the abovementioned continuing connected transactions:

(1) have received the approval of the Company’s board of
Directors;

(2) have been entered into in accordance with the
abovementioned procurement agreement and processing
agreement governing the transactions; and

(8) have not exceeded the cap disclosed in the prospectus of
the Company dated 6 December 2011.
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Contracts with Controlling Shareholders

No contract of significance had been entered into between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling shareholders during the year
ended 31 December 2011.

Non-Compete Undertakings

Each of the controlling shareholders has confirmed to the Company of
his/its compliance with the non-compete undertakings provided to the
Company under the Deed of Non-Competition (as defined in the
Prospectus). The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
status of compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings under the
Deed of Non-Competition have been complied with by the controlling
shareholders.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Business

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business, apart from the
Group’s business, that competes or competed or is or was likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business at any
time during the year ended 31 December 2011 and up to and including
the date of this annual report.

Management Contracts

No contacts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s

articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands where the Company
is incorporated applicable to the Company.
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Emolument Policy

The Group’s emolument policies are based on the merit, qualifications
and competence of individual employees and are reviewed by the
remuneration committee periodically.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the remuneration
committee and are decided by the Board, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

The Company has adopted two share option schemes to motivate and
reward its Directors and eligible employees. Details of these schemes are
set out in the paragraph headed “Share Option Schemes” above and
note 23 to the financial statements.

None of the directors waived any emoluments during the year.

Pension Scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution mandatory provident fund
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for eligible employees. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the consolidated income statements as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in China are
required to participate in defined contribution central pension schemes
operated by the local municipal government. The subsidiaries of the
Group are required to contribute certain percentages of its payroll costs
to the central pension schemes. The contributions are charged to the
consolidated income statements as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of pension
benefits beyond the annual contributions described above.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

Aggregate sales to the Group’s largest and five largest customers
accounted for 18.5% (2010: 10.1%) and 46.2% (2010: 43.1%),
respectively, of the Group’s total revenue from continuing operations.

Aggregate purchases from the Group’s largest and five largest suppliers
accounted for 26.6% (2010: 32.9%) and 68.5% (2010: 64.6%),
respectively, of the Group’s total purchases from suppliers.

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2011, did a Director, his/
her associate(s) or a Shareholder, which to the knowledge of the Director
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital, have an interest in
any of the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

Auditors

KPMG will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.
A resolution for their re-appointment as auditors of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual report, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float of not less than 25%
of the Company’s issued Shares as required under the Listing Rules for
the year ended 31 December 2011.

Bank Loans

Details of bank loans of the Company and the Group as at 31 December
2011 are set out in note 20 to the financial statements.

On behalf of the Board
Shi Hongliu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2012
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To the shareholders of Hosa International Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hosa
International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) set out on pages 94 to 164, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2011,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2011 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

28 March 2012
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

u-Zl’D%El‘I&

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (Expressed in Renminbi)

HZE2011F12A31 B IEFE (RAAREF|R)

2011 2010
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 AR® TR ARBT T
Continuing operations BFEREEK
Turnover =E 2] 3 695,168 347,787
Cost of sales 5 BN (262,552) (178,382)
Gross profit E R 432,616 169,405
Other revenue HAb A 4 4,673 1,928
Other net income/(loss) Hap iz (B18) F58 4 340 (379)
Selling and distribution expenses 8 I A8 85 R AR (65,331) (29,122)
Administrative and other operating expenses 17 % H fif 48 4 B =2 (55,086) (26,695)
Profit from operations REFE 317,212 115,137
Finance costs 51 75 B AR 5(a) (1,544) (6,382)
Profit before taxation RR i A F 5 315,668 108,755
Income tax P15 %% 6 (41,937) (14,380)
Profit for the year from continuing HEREERN
operations FEFME 273,731 94,375
Discontinued operations %ﬂ <32 7
Profit from discontinued operations I <EEF 300 /F'Ej - 4,135
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries, u“_l ’% Mﬂ% G I
machinery and equipment RENINEFRE - 17,596
Profit for the year FEEFBE 273,731 116,106
Other comprehensive income for the year £ E & fth 2 H Uk 25
Exchange differences on translation of HE B A 3 AN
financial statements of operations UNEIR:SREU B Bl
outside the mainland China EHER (638) —
Total comprehensive income for the year & E 2K 4258 273,093 116,106
Earnings per share (RMB) BREN(AR%ER) 11
— Basic — HZAK 0.22 0.10
— Diluted —#E 0.22 | N/A/TiEH

The notes on pages 99 to 164 form part of these financial statements. 2599 % 164 B K M 31 18 i A8 B 78 3 = &9 — 30

Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company 7 ° J& { 78 A &) 4 25 B% 35 4F & 71 )8 JE (5 A%
attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note 25(b). B R FHIB SR M 5 25(0) ©
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

i © B BS IR N R

As at 31 December 2011 (Expressed in Renminbi)
201112 A31 8 (A A RBFIR)

2011 2010
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
M 5E AR® T ARETT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BENEE 12 48,413 51,868
Lease prepayments ERAEE 13 11,862 12,104
Intangible assets EmREEE 14 178 151
Deferred tax assets EEIEE E 24(p) 7,857 5,277
Total non-current assets E(RBEELE 68,310 69,400
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 78 15 100,061 51,376
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EMEIRR 17(a) 226,657 290,925
Pledged deposits EEHRER 18 13,171 37,920
Cash and cash equivalents HEeNBEEEYD 19(a) 635,617 83,827
Total current assets REBEEHLE 975,506 464,048
Current liabilities REasE
Bank loans RITEXR 20 - 98,800
Trade and other payables B 5 N H A FE TR 21(a) 149,777 128,966
Current taxation BOHA R 18 24(a) 16,808 8,291
Total current liabilities REBEEARH 166,585 236,057
Net current assets REBEERE 808,921 227,991
Net assets/total assets less EERHE BEER
current liabilities REBEE 877,231 297,391
Capital and reserves EXR S
Share capital % 2 25(c) 13,027 121,500
Reserves &t 1% 25(d) 864,204 175,891
Total equity EREE 877,231 297,391

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 March

2012.

Shi Hongliu
Director

EF

The notes on pages 99 to 164 form part of these financial statements.

Zeng Shaoxiong

=R 4
Director

EF

= =2 R2012F3 A28 8 #it & K& & #E 7
%o

SE99E 164 B HY P 7E 18 A A B 15 R /9 — 8D

,f/'\ ®

EDBBEBERAR 20114F#% 95



Statement of Financial Position

57 5 A 0 &

As at 31 December 2011 (Expressed in Renminbi)

R20115E12 8318 (A A REFIR)

2011 2010
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
M5 AR T AR T
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REBARIMNEE 16 = -
Total non-current assets IR BEELAE = —
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H 4th & Wk 17(b) 30,325 1
Cash and cash equivalents RERBELEEY 19(a) 442,893 =
Total current assets RBEEHE 473,218 1
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H 4th JE 3% 21(b) 2,972 73
Total current liabilities REEEHEE 2,972 73
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE (BE)FE 470,246 (72)
Net assets/total assets less EEFE BEER
current liabilities nEEE 470,246 (72)
Capital and reserves EXRFE
Share capital f% AN 25(c) 13,027 1
Reserves 1 25(d) 457,219 (73)
Total equity REAHE 470,246 (72)

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 March

2012.

Shi Hongliu
Director

EE

The notes on pages 99 to 164 form part of these financial statements.
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EDHSDIiCIated Statement of Changes in Equity

TV EL T E

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (Expressed in Renminbi)

HE2011F12A31BEFE (AAREZIR)

Paid-in
capital/ Share-based
share Share Capital Statutory Exchange Other compensation  Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total
Bl DR 7
&x/ & 7 BX EE EX Hit REEH RE
B A& HE i i & i HEREE Gilp| @t
(note 25(c))  (note 25(d)(i))  (note 25(d)(il)  (note 25(d)fii))  (note 25(d)(v)) (note 25(d)(v))  (note 25(d)(vi))
(B zx (B &% (B 3% CiEs (P &F (B 3% GiEs
20) ) 25 28 280 25d)) 25
Note RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RVMB'000 RMB'000  RMB’000
ARE ARE AR¥ ARE AR%E AR¥ ARE ARET ARET
i3 T T T T T T T T T
Balance at R20105
1 January 2010 1A1B &S 60,839 - 51 8,086 - - - 51639 120615
Capital injection T 25(c)(iv) 60,661 — 9 - - - - - 60,670
Total comprehensive FEZE
income for the year e - - - - - - - 116,106 116,106
Appropriation to BAETRE
statutory reserves 25(d)fii) - - - 10,339 - - - (10,339 -
Balance at R2010512A31 8
31 December 2010 &20115181R
and 1 January 2011 F 121,500 - 60 18,425 - - — 157,406 297,391
Share issued upon AR UEE %
incorporation & 1n 25(c)(i) 2 - - - - - = = 2
Reduction in capital ERRER
upon reorganisation EEN 250)i)  (121,500) - - - - 91,132 - - (30,368)
Dividend declared prior to 72 ff % & 3 2 /&
public offering O 25(0) - - - - - - — (151,705  (151,705)
Capitalisation issue BALET 25(c)i) 9,768 (9,768) = = = = = = =
Share issued under public 12152 B % &
offering, net of BETRS
issuing expense MBBITRY  250)i) 3,257 485,318 = = = = = — 488575
Total comprehensive FE2EKE
income for the year k] - - - - (638) - — 273731 273,093
Appropriation to BAETE
statutory reserves @ 25(d)(i) - - - 28,622 - = - (28622 =
Equity-settled PR 2% 4 I
share-based payments & {p 25(cl)(vi) - - - - - - 243 - 243
Balance at R2011E12 8318
31 December 2011 iof 13,027 475,550 60 47,047 (638) 91,132 243 250,810 877,231
The notes on pages 99 to 164 form part of these financial statements. FO9E164 B WM s A ANBF A5 3R EZ B — &6
o
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EDHSDIidated Cash Flow Statement

||'7.|_ (=) IE % )/ [[R=2 %E

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (Expressed in Renminbi)
HE201M1F12ANBIEFECAARESITR)

2011 2010
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
k=3 ARBTR ARBFIT
Operating activities KEEH
Cash generated from operations KEFTSIAE 19(b) 345,318 116,092
Income tax paid B ATEH (36,000) (8,726)
Net cash generated from operating KSR TS
activities HEFH 309,318 107,366
Investing activities REZH
Payment for purchase of property, BEME WERREBMNRK
plant and equipment (2,556) (81,538)
Payment for lease prepayments EAEE MR = (9,084)
Payment for purchase of intangible assets BEEFVEEMNK (135) (60)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from disposal HEMBARMNELSRA
of subsidiaries O ) 88 13,080 (1,842)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEME - BEKRXHE
and equipment Fr13 5K 18 109 —
Interest received B YERFI 2 1,074 a7
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits BEERFERRL () 24,749 (24,680)
Net cash generated from/(used in) REEEFTE(FFA)
investing activities HE&FE 36,321 (66,787)
Financing activities mESEE
Proceeds from bank loans RITE RIS FIA = 214,578
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (98,800) (239,250)
Proceeds from issue of shares in the ANABEEBITRG S
public offering, net of issuing expenses HIE HBRETHAL 25(c)iii) 488,575 —
Cash received from capital injection EE FTIEUR € - 60,670
Interest paid B F A (1,544) (8,395)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders prior RARZFEEMD TR
to public offering AR R AR B 25(b) (151,705) -
Payment for reorganisation ERENEN 25(c)(i) (30,375) —
Net cash generated from RMEEHRE
financing activities REEHE 206,151 27,603
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRBESEEYEMTFE 551,790 68,182
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January M A1ENREERESEEY 83,827 15,645
Cash and cash equivalents R12BA31EHHNEER
at 31 December HEZEEY 19(a) 635,617 83,827
The notes on pages 99 to 164 form part of these financial statements. F99F 164 B 1Y M T A AN B 75 ek B9 — 20
A
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Notes to the Financial Statements

57 #5 ¥ = B 53X

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHEAIN

1

BAARESIR)

Significant Accounting Policies

(a

(b)

Statement of compliance

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 2
September 2010. The shares of the Company have been
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited since 16 December 2011.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and
Interpretations issued by International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB”). These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 1(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these consolidated
financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2011 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B ¥% ¥R 2% Bit 5

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(REEEBAIN  HUAREZIR)

.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(Continued)

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong Dollars
(“HK$"). These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) as the functional currency of
the Group’s operating subsidiaries is RMB. These
consolidated financial statements presented in RMB have
been rounded to the nearest thousand.

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
IFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 2.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B ¥%5 ¥R 2% Bt 5

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BREEEBAI  HUAAREIITR)

1

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting standards

The IASB has issued a number of amendments to IFRSs and
one new interpretation that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Of these,
the amendments titled “IAS 24 (revised 2009), Related party
disclosures” and “Improvements to IFRSs (2010)” are relevant
to the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for current accounting period.

“IAS 24 (revised 2009), Related party disclosures” and
“Improvements to IFRSs (2010)” have had no material impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements as the
amendments were consistent with policies already adopted
by the Group.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights
that presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(j)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B ¥% ¥R 2% Bit 5

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(REEEBAIN  HUAREZIR)

.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment

(f)

[tems of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note

1(0)-

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

e Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over
the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 20 years after
the date of completion.

e Machinery and equipment 5-10 years
e Motor vehicles 2—4 years
e Furniture and fixtures 3-5 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent software and are stated in the
consolidated statements of financial position at cost less
accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful life is
finite) and impairment losses (see note 1(i).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the
asset’s estimate useful lives. Software are amortised from the
date they are available for use over a period of three years.

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

BEAETTHE @
) V¥ BMERRE

(f)

YR~ B MRk 118 B A AR
ER2FHERBERK(RME
10) 718 -

HEILEME  BEARRER
BEMELANABEBAZEENHEE
PRSI FRERREE L HH
ERET UYNBEXLEEH
EBRHEATIAER

ME BELRRERBENTER
THfAE AT B EH - ABE BEM
B H OB AN R A A E R R B E
(A FE

e MIARMELH FHEFIEAK
ERenHEEkEMAHTH
FHUAREEAE BETH
BT BHB20F)ITE -

o BN FEE 5Z& 104
o AE 2T A%
o RMEREE 3E54F

BENAAFHREFSREE
(nB) B FETERN -

BIEE

BEREERSRMG  BRABRER
ATEE(ERAARAFHEAER)
FORER K (RME) REEE M
BRI KRG BR

AEERABEFHNETLEER
HIONEEMAIRFHANE
ARORERm P HIRR - K HEA
HERE B AE3F MR N -

BHERARAEDZABFETE
F}ao

102 HOSA International Limited  Annual Report 2011



Notes to the Financial Statements
B ¥%5 ¥R 2% Bt 5

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR

1

= EEHAIN

BAARESIR)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(9)

(h)

Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments represent cost of land use rights paid to
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) governmental
authorities. Land use rights are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see note
1(i)). Amortisation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the respective periods of the rights.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease terms, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased assets. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.

Impairment of assets

() Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, trade
and other receivables
Investments in subsidiaries, trade and other receivables
that are stated at cost or amortised cost are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to determine
whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment includes observable
data that comes to the attention of the Group about
one or more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
BAARESIR)

(BmBHEAIN

1

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, trade
and other receivables (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

For investments in subsidiaries, the impairment
loss is measured by comparing the recoverable
amount of the investment with its carrying amount
in accordance with note 1(i)(ii). The impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount in accordance with note 1(i)ii).

For trade and other receivables, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect of
discounting is material. This assessment is made
collectively where financial assets share similar
risk characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually assessed
as impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.
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1

BAARESIR)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, trade
and other receivables (Continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss
shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses recognised in respect of trade
debtors are included within trade and other receivables,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade
debtors directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to the
allowance account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets
Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired or
an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

° property, plant and equipment;
° lease prepayments; and
o intangible assets.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

° Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less cost to sell and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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(B=BHEAIN

BAARESIR)

1 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

() Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)  Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the
other assets to the cash-generating unit (or group
of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs to sell, or
value in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
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.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

0)

(k)

()

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period when
the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of
any write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in
the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 1(i)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with
any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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1

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(m) Trade and other payables

(n)

(0)

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

()  Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Contributions to appropriate local defined contribution
retirement schemes pursuant to the relevant labour
rules and regulations in the PRC are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss as incurred, except to the
extent that they are included in the cost of inventories
not yet recognised as an expense.

BEAREFTHE @)
m) EZREMEMNR

(n)

(0)

B 5 MEAMENROIG IR A (E
BRER  HRZEBHKANI K-
BROFRMBEMPZEL TEX £t
BT R AR AN B

RERhBSEEY

RekReFEVERERTHER
RFBERE RITREMGSEBHE
B E B F 3R DA K AT BE B 5
RENBENRESNENIRD
HHRE ZEFEREMEENER
FFPEBY FTERN IRBAR
A=A REH-

BERA

() EHEERARAEMK
RARET R
e FERL -BFF
&~ FE HFORIRET IR
PYSES G R NS
ERERMHMEBRGNEF
EAE - ik EEE
BRI BREEKX R
ZECHIREBRER -

BREFFABRKERSF
X FERASN - RiEF E
BESTRAUNRERRAE
@ B R E MR IRE &
EHHXRELEBEAE
BEERAR -

EDBBEARAR  20114#% 109



Notes to the Financial Statements
B ¥% ¥R 2% Bit 5

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BmBHEAIN

.

BIAAREESIR)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(o) Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to directors/
employees and distributors is recognised as employee
cost and selling expenses respectively with a
corresponding increase in the share-based
compensation reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at the grant date using the binomial lattice
model, taking into accounts the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where the
directors/employees and distributors have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally
entitled to the options, the total estimated fair value of
the options is spread over the vesting period, taking
into account the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to profit or loss for the
year of the review with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve) except
where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in
the capital reserve until either the option is exercised (when
it is transferred to the share premium account) or the
option expires (when it is released directly to retained
profits).

BEAETTHE @
(o) EERTF @

(i

LR R EENNR
RYEE RBER —REH
BNERENRAEBED
At ABERARHEER
oY ERET RN R
EENMEREFEHERESE
Mme 2R EERRHBHE
BEA —EARBEERG
B R AR BB AR Y 1
REGG - HEE EER
—RREERNERTERE
FEZEBBRERNAED
RUEBBGMS  ANEBEHN
P ET B RO RO (T
NAEBEARE X AZB
KRB R REE -

REBHBEEAHESRKT
BENERERE E£TH
e HAEFERRBNR
AR BEEMEMREE.
RETRINFEERS
RAFA G EREXR
EEANIERERAR RNEB
B BMRAFAXHNEEA
THE URKRER LS5
BREREHE (ERER
ffEEmAERERE)
REKGE =2 8RR AR
MHEBBNRBIEEM
EHBOR WIS - BRAH
a5 BP0 0 B AN 1 0 B
ROEEEHENEBERED
BT (ERERARN R
BER)BRED E®(E
RERBEREZRENE) R
1k e

110 HOSA International Limited  Annual Report 2011



Notes to the Financial Statements
B ¥%5 ¥R 2% Bt 5

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BREEEBAI  HUAAREIITR)

1

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(p)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous periods.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which the
asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits
that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods
into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can
be carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax
loss or credit can be utilised.
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.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(p)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of
taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(p)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each other
and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

° in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

° in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net
basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

(q) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(q) Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

(r

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

()  Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when the customer has
accepted the goods and the related risks and rewards
of ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

(i)  Interestincome
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(i) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement of
financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as revenue in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from the
carrying amount of the asset and consequently are
effectively recognised in profit or loss over the useful life
of the asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(r

(s)

(t)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iv) Rental income from operating leases
Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates.

The results of operations outside the mainland China are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated into RMB
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.
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B ¥% ¥R 2% Bit 51

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR

.

S BEEHAIN -

BIAAREESIR)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(u) Discontinued operations

(v)

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and which
represents a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to
dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with
a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale, if earlier. It also occurs if the
operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, the financial
impacts are presented on the face of the statements of
comprehensive income, which include:

—  the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation;
and

— the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on the
disposal, of the assets or disposal group constituting
the discontinued operation.

Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(@  has control or joint control over the Group;

(b)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(c) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR

1

SHEAI HAAREDIR)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(v) Related parties (Continued)

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(@)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third party and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly-controlled by a
person identified in (i).

A person identified in (i)(a) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(REEEBAN  BHUAREZIR)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(w) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial statements provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business.

Accounting Judgement and Estimates

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements and
other uncertainties affecting application of those policies and the
sensitivity of reported results to changes in condition and
assumptions are factors to be considered when reviewing the
financial statements. The principal accounting policies are set forth
in note 1. The Group believes the following critical accounting
policies involve the most significant judgements and estimates used
in the preparation of the financial statements.

(@) Impairments

If circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset
may not be recoverable, the asset may be considered
“impaired”, and an impairment loss may be recognised in
profit or loss. The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed
periodically in order to assess whether the recoverable
amounts have declined below the carrying amounts. These
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that their recorded carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. When such a decline has
occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable
amount.

REDHBEABREAZHNE
BEoEAEBNEE  JEEHR
AEEERTREEBRHER
DRERRFZAKETRER
R T IR P AR -

et ¥ R et

BEr RHAEBHFEFERERBEL
BRLEMAZ(EREREERKBRA
ERERKREMANESEREY) -

EXSFHENERE FEXFTRR
F& PR B0 ) B N LAl N EABA R = DA KR P
ERFEHBRMTRBRREDINHRE
DRAEHNMBEHRREMZEENEER -
T2EFEREEINAMEI - AEE
BIE A TERNGFARRL LR
75 3% B P PR Bk 2% BB KB ) T S A
ate

(@) WE

HEBRBREENREESLS
AlE - AZEERRE /I
A - P18 & AR ORU(E 18
K- BENRAESER T AR
A AFEATKREERAEERE
BEREEE SEHEEHRERE
SR RED R ERT A
BIE - A FEEETRER
AoMELBABETK REE
EREAWEEE -

118 HOSA International Limited  Annual Report 2011



Notes to the Financial Statements
B ¥% ¥R 2% Bt 5

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHEAIN

BAARESIR)

2 Accounting Judgement and Estimates (Continued)

(a

(b)

(c)

Impairments (Continued)

The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less
costs to sell and the value in use. In determining the value in
use, expected cash flows generated by the asset are
discounted to their present value, which requires significant
judgement relating to level of sales volume, sales revenue and
amount of operating costs. The Group uses all readily
available information in determining an amount that is a
reasonable approximation of recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and supportable assumptions
and projections of sales volume, sales revenue and amount
of operating costs.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale. These estimates are based on the current market
conditions and the historical experience of selling products
with similar nature. Any change in the assumptions would
increase or decrease the amount of inventories write-down or
the related reversals of write-down made in prior years and
affect the Group’s net assets value. The Group reassesses
these estimates at each end of the reporting period.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group estimates the impairment allowances for trade
and other receivables by assessing the recoverability based
on credit history and prevailing market conditions. This
requires the use of estimates and judgements. Allowances
are applied to trade and other receivables where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may not
be collectible. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will affect the carrying
amounts of trade and other receivables and thus the
impairment loss in the period in which such estimate is
changed. The Group reassesses the impairment allowances
at each end of the reporting period.
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= BEEHAIN

BIAAREESIR)

2 Accounting Judgement and Estimates (Continued)

(d) Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives, after taking into
account the estimated residual value. The Group reviews the
estimated useful lives of the assets regularly in order to
determine the amount of depreciation to be recorded during
any reporting period. The useful lives are based on the
Group’s historical experience with similar assets and taking
into account anticipated technological changes. The
depreciation expenses for future periods are adjusted
prospectively if there are significant changes from previous
estimates.

Turnover and Segment Reporting

The principal activities of the Group are design, manufacture and
wholesale of swimwear, fitness wear, sports underwear and swim
and indoor sports accessories.

Turnover represents the sales value of goods sold less returns and
discounts.

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s
business segments. The primary format, business segments, is
based on the Group’s management and internal reporting structure.
No geographical segment analysis is presented as substantially all
assets, liabilities, turnover and gross profit of the Group are
attributable to the operation in the PRC.

The Group has four separate segments within the continuing
operations:

—  Design, manufacture and wholesale of swimwear (“Swimwear”);
—  Design, manufacture and wholesale of fitness wear (“Fitness
wear”);

—  Design, manufacture and wholesale of sports underwear (“Sports
underwear”); and

—  Wholesale of swim and indoor sports accessories (“Accessories”).
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BREEEBIN  HUAAREITR)

3 Turnover and Segment Reporting (Continued) 3 BEHENITIHRE @
In presenting the information on the basis of business segments, REBDIPEEZHEL B DI
segment turnover and results are based on the sales and gross XHENEETNRIBKES B4
profits of Swimwear, Fitness wear, Sports underwear and M -EBEFHAXKLEEENEE RERMN
Accessories. =i
Fitness Sports
Swimwear wear underwear Accessories Total
XE®H EEWmM @ EFHAK B Mt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETT ARBTRT AREBTT ARETT
Year ended B E2011$12H31H
31 December 2011 IHEE
Turnover B 237,249 155,276 270,269 32,374 695,168
Cost of sales HE A (83,762) (51,435) (116,149) (11,206) (262,552)
Gross profit ESA| 153,487 103,841 154,120 21,168 432,616
Year ended B Z2010F12831H
31 December 2010 IEEE
Turnover BEDE 143,477 73,806 111,582 18,922 347,787
Cost of sales 4 8 B A (72,0090  (38,011)  (59,0293) (8,439) (178,382
Gross profit EF 70,568 35,795 52,559 10,483 169,405
The Group’s turnover by geographical locations is determined by AEEZRWEBMBEE DN EERIIN
the destination where the goods are delivered. EmXTERMEE -
Year ended 31 December
BZ12B31HILEE
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREET T
Domestic A 690,306 296,798
Overseas SN 4,862 50,989
695,168 347,787
The Group has one customer with whom transactions have B Z20114F k20105612 H31H IE M
exceeded 10% of the Group’s turnover for both of the years ended HEE AEBE-—FBZEFHORS
31 December 2011 and 2010. The amount of sales to this BRAEEEEBEMNION o KA F
customer amounted to approximately RMB128,782,000 for the B REZABEFPFHNESEEHNAA
year (2010: RMB34,962,000). R #128,782,0007T (20104 : A R #&

34,962,0007T) ©
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(=B HEHIN HAARETIR)

4  Other Revenue and other Net Income/(Loss)

Hisg AR H bz~
(B 1]) # 5

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILEE

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T
Other revenue H A YA
Interest income — financial institutions & 8 Yg A — & @b # 15 1,074 415
Rental income HEWA 103 1,175
Government grants BT 18 B 3,380 338
Others Hity 116 -
4,673 1,928
Other net income/(loss) Hfth Wz, (&5 18) F 58
Exchange gain/(loss) P& 5 U (E18) 268 (380)
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEYE BMEK
and equipment B & 67 -
Others HAty 5 1
340 (879)

Government grants of the Group were unconditional and were

therefore recognised as income when received.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B SEBHEBEIN  HUAREKSTR)

5 Profit before Taxation 5 BR® AR E
Profit before taxation of continuing operations is arrived at after & 42 4 B8 2 R A B B AT A T &0 B
charging: AT &IEREBS

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTFT
(@) Finance costs: (@) BARERAN :
Interest on bank borrowings RITE KA E 1,544 6,382
(b) Staff costs: () BT :
Contributions to defined M FGRIRET 845k
contribution retirement plans (P 3E22)
(note 22) 3,603 4,448
Equity-settled share-based PARE 2 45 & AR 17
payments (note 23) = f<F (Bt 5523) 243 -
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREMBEFT 45,902 30,518
49,838 34,966
(¢) Other items: ) EMIEAR :
Amortisation of intangible assets EmEEREN
and lease prepayments T & # 5y 350 140
Auditors’ remuneration FETEN BN < 1,200 10
Depreciation e 5,969 3,522
(Reversal)/recognition of impairment Z 5 W TR EB & (BmE),/
losses for trade receivables R (1,757) 788
Operating lease charges in respect BEEMENKE
of properties HEZH 2,569 1,886
Cost of inventories” FEmA* 262,552 178,382

Cost of inventories for the year ended 31 December 2011 includes
RMB27,719,000 (2010: RMB24,157,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation
and amortisation expenses and operating lease charges, which amount is
included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately above in notes
5(b) and (c) for each of these types of expenses.

HZE2011F12A3MBILEFENFEMRN
B A R #27,719,000 7T (20104 : A B
¥ 24,157,0007T) * ThE B TR A - T E R
BHEFAIUARGCERES AR ML
SENAAREZERIBERE LT
50) R () BIMNEBEM S EFEF -

EDBBEBERAR 20114 123



Notes to the Financial Statements
B ¥% ¥R 2% Bit 5

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(REEEBAN HUAREZIR)

6

Income Tax in the Consolidated Statement of

Comprehensive Income

(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income represents:

REZHEHRERTHAER

@ mEE2EWERPHBIE

-

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31HILLEE

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR T
Current tax — PRC income tax BNEAFiE — B REHR
Provision for the year FEBE 44,517 16,289
Deferred tax i 18
Origination of temporary differences 2 4 B | = 58
(note 24(p)) (B 7E24(b)) (2,580) (1,909)
41,937 14,380

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

(b) BiIEPA X EEIRE AR R
ENSABNYEE:

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31HILLEE

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREFTT
Profit before taxation B 7 B A1) 315,668 108,755
Notional tax on profit before HBERRSRE R EER
taxation, calculated at the ETE R ERBR AT
statutory tax rates applicable to FER B EFHIEA()
the respective tax jurisdictions (i) 78,917 27,189
Tax effect of PRC preferential tax FREEBRRGFEN
treatments (ii) 7% 52 2 i) (44,432) (16,293)
Tax effect of non-deductible AR A RS &
expenses 5,887 2,134
Tax rate differential on deferred BERIBAREER
tax items 1,565 295
Tax effect of unrealised profits AERAEORGTE = 1,055
Actual tax expense ERFERAX 41,937 14,380
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(B=BHEAIN

6

BAARESIR)

Income Tax in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
(Continued)

U

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Island (“BVI”), the Group is
not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands
and the BVI.

No provision was made for Hong Kong Profits Tax as
the Group did not earn any assessable profit subject to
Hong Kong Profits Tax for the years ended 31
December 2011 and 2010.

According to the PRC Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”)
Law that took effect on 1 January 2008, the statutory
income tax rate of the Group’s subsidiary in mainland
China Haosha Industry (Fujian) Co., Ltd. (“Haosha
Industry”) is 25%.

Prior to 1 January 2008, Hosha Industry, being a
production-oriented foreign investment enterprise, was
entitled to a tax holiday of 2-year full exemption followed
by 3-year 50% reduction in the income tax rate
commencing from its first profit-making year from a
PRC tax perspective (“2+3 tax holiday”). Haosha
Industry commenced operations and recorded taxable
profits in 2007. Given its operating period was less than
6 months in 2007, it could defer its 2+3 tax holiday
commencement to the following year based on the then
prevailing tax regulations.

6

REZEHRBERTHNRE

(&)

(b) BiIEBA X EIRE AR R
ENEst AR (8

(i)

REFEHELEBER
ESE(RBERESDHN
BMAIRCER  NEBHA!
MASHEE R REG R
SMEMARFR-

RSB REZE20114F
K2010F 12 A31H It F [F
I 4% Bk BX(E ) 78 B BB
FIS A EERTFDE - Bt
I FEF G RE
f& °

iR & 7200841 A1 H £ &
R B RS R (%
8% A&EEFEH
Wi B R RIED EXEE
BYBERABI(ELEZED
HEEFTIS T X B25% o

FE20084E1 A1 H Bl - & ¥
EXEREERIIFIRE
tE - RPEHREAMES -
AEEEEEFNFEMR
EERRBMEEMBH
WE HE=ZFHMEHH
ERFHERNRRE =R
FHBEERE]) - HEPEE
B2007 & [ f5 & &+ I 8%
BEARABANB- AR ER
2007 FF W) & B HIME D RS
&l A - BRI E R E R A%
ER G EMBE =R EREE
BHACEEET —FER

4 e

EDBBEBERAR 20114F#K 125



Notes to the Financial Statements
B ¥% ¥R 2% Bit 5

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(REEEBAN HUAREZIR)

6 Income Tax in the Consolidated Statement of

Comprehensive Income (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

(Continued)

The CIT Law and its relevant regulations grandfather
the 2+3 tax holidays and require them to commence on
1 January 2008 should they be not started earlier.
Accordingly, Haosha Industry commenced its 2+3 tax
holiday on 1 January 2008. It was exempt from income
tax for 2008 and 2009 and is subject to income tax at
12.5% and 25% from 2010 to 2012 and from 2013

onwards, respectively.

(i) According to the CIT Law and its implementation rules,
dividends receivable by non-PRC corporate residents
from PRC enterprises are subject to withholding tax at
a rate of 10%, unless reduced by tax treaties or
arrangements, for profits earned since 1 January 2008.
In addition, under the Sino-Hong Kong Double Tax
Arrangement and its relevant regulations, a qualified
Hong Kong tax resident will be liable for withholding tax
at the rate of 5% for dividend income derived from the
PRC if the Hong Kong tax resident is the “beneficial
owner” and holds 25% or more of the equity interests

of the PRC Company.
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7

Discontinued operations

In 2010, the management decided to terminate its operation in
manufacture and sale of fabric (“Fabric”) and the retail businesses
(“Retail”). The Group changes its strategy to focus on manufacturing
and sales of finished products through distributors. Profit from
discontinued operations represents the results of the Fabric
segment and the Retail segment for the year ended 31 December
2010.

On 31 July 2010, Haosha Industry disposed the production line
related to Fabric at a consideration of RMB2,019,000 to Fujian
Province Jinjiang City Haosha Garments Co., Ltd. (“Haosha
Garments”) which was under common control of the major
shareholders (see also Note 28). The transaction was completed on
31 July 2010 and resulted in a loss of RMB26,000.

Beijing Yasha Apparel Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Yasha”), Shanghai Haote
Apparel Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Haote”), Guangzhou Yingchang
Apparel Co., Ltd. (“Guangzhou Yingchang”) were engaged in retail
business of swimwear, fithess wear, sports underwear and swim
and indoor sports accessories sourced from Haosha Industry. On
30 July 2010, the Group terminated the retail business and
disposed of the entire interests in Beijing Yasha, Shanghai Haote
and Guangzhou Yingchang at a consideration of RMB13,080,000
to independent third parties. These transactions were completed
on 30 July 2010 and resulted in a gain of RMB17,622,000.

RIEEERTE

R2010F  EEEBRERIEEHEAM A
EREEEB(EAMDARETEER
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8 Directors’ Remuneration 8 EZEFHM
Details of Directors’ remuneration of the Group are set out below: NEBEESHFMANFESEYOT :
Year ended 31 December 2011 HBZE2011E12A31BILEE

Salaries, Contributions
allowances to retirement

and benefits benefit Share-based Discretionary

Fee in kind scheme  payments bonuses Total
Fe 2l RARERN  UROAR Bt5

e REVEAN SEMR BEENCX A ot

RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTRE ARBMTR AR®TR AR®TRT ARBTRT AR®TR

Executive Directors | {TE =
Mr. Shi Hongliu T HE R 5 A - 1,014 87 - - 1,101
Mr. Shi Hongyan 1 5 I 5T A - 887 77 - - 964
Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong DHEEE - 634 55 32 - 721
Mr. Zhao Yan il Chtes - 644 69 45 - 758
Sub-total 1NG - 3,179 288 77 - 3,544
Independent BIFEHT

Non-executive E=Z

Directors
Ms. Ko Yuk Lan SE#ERLT = 11 = = = 11
Mr. Sun Ruizhe FRinBEE = 8 = = = 8
Mr. Yao Ge kxR EE = 8 = = = 8
Sub-total 1N - 27 - - - 27
Total mEt - 3,206 288 77 - 3,571
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8 Directors’ Remuneration (Continued) 8 EEHMwuwm

Year ended 31 December 2010 HZ2010F12A31 B LEE

Salaries, Contributions
allowances to retirement

and benefits benefit Share-based Discretionary

Fee in kind scheme payments bonuses Total
e RM  RKEN  UKRGR 1B

Hwe REWEHN  FEMAR EENFK P3SN @t

RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTIT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTRT

Executive Directors #{TEZE
Mr. Shi Hongliu B HE TR 5 A - 612 99 = = 711
Mr. Shi Hongyan 18 JE 5 A — 527 85 = = 612
Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong DHEEE - 394 64 = = 458
Mr. Zhao Yan iR cpvies - 354 57 = = 411
Sub-total INE — 1,887 305 — — 2,192
Independent BIEHT

Non-executive =

Directors
Ms. Ko Yuk Lan SEETL — — — = — =
Mr. Sun Ruizhe BInE L& — — — — — —
Mr. Yao Ge ks - = — - _ _
Sub-total INE — — — — — -
Total P — 1,887 305 — — 2,192
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10

Individual with Highest Emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four (2010:
four) are directors whose remuneration are disclosed in note 8. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other one (2010:
one) are as follows:

9 EBREFMAL

hEamxmHMA LTS MK (20104 ¢
MEZ)AESE - HEMEFIAK EsH
BEeoZ—R010F: —%) AT H
HEEREAT

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BILEE
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
Salaries and other emoluments & K& H b 679 148
Share-based payments AR 15 B E 22 B 15 3k 7 =
Retirement scheme contributions RIREH B = 24
686 172

The emoluments of the one individual (2010: one) with the highest
emoluments are within the following bands:

bt —#£(20105F : —R) & HFMA
ITWHEMNFTIEE :

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BILLEE
2011 2010
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A A
HK$ Nil to 1,000,000 =% 7L 21,000,000 7T 1 1

Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of
The Company

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company includes a loss of RMB17,863,000 (2010: RMB73,000)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company.

10 R4 A #EmRRESFE

KRR ZBREELEEFERE
ERARAHBEHREARERNEIE
A R #17,863,0007T (20104 : A R &
73,0007T) °
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11 Earnings Per Share 11 ERER
(a) Basic earnings per share (@ BEREXER
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the BERNBRNTZEERNAD R
profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the BREZEREEMGNBEARK
Company of RMB273,731,000 (2010: RMB116,106,000) and 273,731,0007C (20104 : A R &
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 116,106,00070) M FE RN B B 17 &
during the year of 1,217,534,000 (2010: 1,200,000,000 8 %I AE 19 21,217,534,000 A%
shares after adjusting for capitalisation issue in 2011). (20104 : gt R2011FEH & K1k

1T /E A EE 1% A1,200,000,000
R D) s E -

Weighted average number of ordinary shares LB IR RS B
2011 2010
’000 ’000
TR T &
Capitalisation upon establishment B 3 1% B 75 & K 1,200,000 1,200,000
Effect of shares issued upon placing and R2011E12 A16HEEE &
public offering on 16 December 2011 NAZEEMETRM
M & 17,534 —

Weighted average number of

ordinary shares AR N RE T g 1,217,534 1,200,000
(b) Diluted earnings per share b) SREBEER
The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year HE0NMF12A3H EFEHR
ended 31 December 2011 is based on the profit attributable MBS RF HIREAR QR B
to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of % 58 & 4 B A R #6273,731,0007T
RMB273,731,000 and the weighted average number of Ko 3 3 % 00 T 5 #01,217,864,000
ordinary shares of 1,217,864,000 shares calculated as REtE T :
follows:
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) 9 PR N FESE 19 2 (3 5E)
2011
’000
TR
Weighted average number of ordinary shares & 38 % H 4 - 5 21 1,217,534
Effect of deemed issue of shares under RIEA N A B A AT 2
the Company’s share option scheme REHEBEERTRONEE
for nil consideration (note 23) (Pt 3£23) 330

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares (diluted) -3 A% N AE S Y g (e 1,217,864
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12 Property, Plant and Equipment

12 X BEER®E

Machinery Furniture
and Motor and
Buildings equipment vehicles fixtures Total
BB R [E8Y53
BF B4 RE RE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBETT AREBETT AREFTr ARETT
Cost: )N
At 1 January 2010 ®2010F1 A1 H = 15,161 4,387 1,513 21,061
Additions NE 28,780 1,021 996 735 31,532
Transfer from construction 7 T2 8 A
in progress — 10,958 — - 10,958
Disposals e — (2,577) — 2 (2,579)
Disposal of subsidiaries LB KB A A — = = (212) @212)
At 31 December 2010 R2010F12 A31H 28,780 24,563 5,383 2,034 60,760
At 1 January 2011 HR20114F1A1H 28,780 24,563 5,383 2,034 60,760
Additions NE 550 574 — 1,432 2,556
Disposals & = = (217) (198) (419)
At 31 December 2011 R2011F12 531 H 29,330 25,137 5,166 3,268 62,901
Accumulated depreciation: B &7 E :
At 1 January 2010 #®2010F1A1H = 3,437 1,188 597 5,222
Charge for the year FENE — 2,595 1,212 530 4,337
Written back on disposals H & B 8 o) — (651) — — (651)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEN B A A — = = (16) (16)
At 31 December 2010 201012 A31H — 5,381 2,400 1,111 8,892
At 1 January 2011 R2011F1H1H = 5,381 2,400 1,111 8,892
Charge for the year FEWRE 1,673 2,641 1,079 576 5,969
Written back on disposals HE R D — — (184) (189) (3793)
At 31 December 2011 R2011F12 831 H 1,673 8,022 3,295 1,498 14,488
Net book value: BREFE
At 31 December 2011 R2011F12 A31H 27,657 17,115 1,871 1,770 48,413
At 31 December 2010 2010612 A31H 28,780 19,182 2,983 923 51,868

All property, plant and equipment owned by the Group are located

in the PRC.

Buildings are situated on leasehold land with lease term of 45 years

in the PRC.
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13 Lease Prepayments 13 EAHEE
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARET T
Cost: K
At 1 January M1A1R 12,104 —
Additions NE = 12,104
At 31 December W12 A31H 12,104 12,104
Accumulated amortisation: e
At 1 January ®m1A1H - =
Charge for the year FEEE 242 —
At 31 December MW12HA31H 242 —
Net book value: BREFE :
At 31 December W12 A31H 11,862 12,104
As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s interests in leasehold land R2011F12A31H  AEBEFREME
are held on a medium-term lease of 45 years in the PRC. EtHEm AP HEERE B

454 o

EDBBEBERAR 20114#% 133



Notes to the Financial Statements
B ¥% ¥R 2% Bit 51

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(REEEBAN  BHUAREZIR)

14 Intangible Assets

14 BREE

Software
B
RMB’000
AR T
Cost: K
At January 2010 R2010F1 A1 H 328
Additions NE 60
At 31 December 2010 R2010F12 A31H 388
At 1 January 2011 R2011FE1H1H 388
Additions NE 135
At 31 December 2011 7R2011F12A31H 523
Accumulated amortisation: B -
At 1 January 2010 R2010F1 A1 H 97
Charge for the year FEEH 140
At 31 December 2010 MR2010F12 A31H 237
At 1 January 2011 R2011FE1H1H 237
Charge for the year FE#H 108
At 31 December 2011 R2011F12 831 H 345
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2011 R20114F12 A31 H 178
At 31 December 2010 R2010F12 831 H 151

The amortisation charge for the year is included in administrative
and other operating expenses in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.
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15 Inventories 15 &
(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement of (@ ZEMBERRARNVNEER
financial position comprise: LLTEBAMK:
At 31 December
M12A31H
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AREETF T
Raw materials & 4 29,696 25,311
Work in progress ER R 3,282 656
Finished goods B o 67,083 25,409
100,061 51,376
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories b) BRABAZILTABERN
recognised as an expense and included in FEEBEIWAOT:

profit or loss is as follows:

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLEE
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETT
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEREREMAE 262,469 177,947
Write down of inventories WOR T & 83 435
262,552 178,382
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16 Investments in subsidiaries

16 RMBLARNRE

The Company
PN
At 31 December
M12A31H
2011
RMB’000
ARE TR

2010
RMB’000
ARETT

Unlisted shares, at cost

LR - AR

Particulars of the subsidiaries are set out below:

TXHIIMBRBNFE

Proportion of

ownership interest

Place of held by the Company
incorporation/ Particular of RATEFENFERE
establishment issued and ezt
Name of company and operation fully paid up Direct asubsidiary Principal activities
A, ERTR
DA BB PR T A 1 B BRFEE =k:3 MEBAT FEXEB
Hosa Investment BVI/Hong Kong US$H1 100% — Investment holding
Holdings Limited
(“Hosa Investment”)
EDRERBRABRRA A KBS REE/ 1%E7T 100% - REER
(CEADRED B
Hosa Group Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Investment holding
Holdings Limited
(“Hosa Group”)
EDEEZERERA A BB 10,0007% 7T — 100% WEER
(&L %@

Haosha Industry* PRC RMB121,500,000 — 100%  Design, manufacture and
sales of swimwear, fitness
wear, sports underwear
and swim and indoor sports
accessories

TEDBE  E AR — 100% &R&t - HEREEKED -

name of the company is in Chinese.
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17 Trade and Other Receivables 17 B 5 & H fth B K
(a) The Group (@ =K%
At 31 December
M12831H
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®B T ARET T
Trade receivable g 5 WK 210,432 183,442
Bills receivable e FE & 500 =
Less: allowance for doubtful debts o RBREE (862) (2,619)
Trade and bills receivables 2 S RERARERER 210,070 180,823
Deposits and prepayments e RIEAEK 14,633 19,591
Other receivables E A FE UK 1,954 14,249
Amount due from related parties & U BE Bt 7 A - 74,540
Other assets Hiw&EE - 1,722
226,657 290,925
All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be FrBE 5 &k EH i WK E —
recovered within one year. FRYE -
()  Ageing analysis () BRECZDMT
Included in trade and other receivables are trade and NE S REMBEWRFTA &
bills receivables (net of allowance for doubtful debts) 5 WA K EWEE (kK
with the following ageing analysis as of the end of the REREHE) NS R R
reporting period. BT o

At 31 December

M12831H
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREFTT
Within 1 month 1@ AR 96,858 48,619
More than 1 month but within 3 months 118 A LA F{E31E A N 99,823 85,719
More than 3 months but within 6 months  31& A LA F{E61E A N 11,445 39,730
More than 6 months but within 1 year 61 AN EB1FERA 1,048 6,754
More than 1 year 16 E 896 1
210,070 180,823
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17 Trade and Other Receivables (Continued) 17

(@) The Group (Continued)

()  Ageing analysis (Continued)
Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out
in note 26(a).

As at 31 December 2011, current balance included in
trade receivables and bill receivables (net of allowance
for doubtful debts) amounted to RMB208,126,000.
Amount past due was RMB1,944,000. Receivables that
were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide
range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

(i)  Impairment of trade and bills receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade and bills
receivables are recorded using an allowance account
unless the Group is satisfied that the prospect of
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against trade and bills
receivables directly (see note 1(i)(i)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
during the year is as follows:

ESREMERR @
(@ A&EBE @

(i)

(i

IR o0 AT (48)
AEEEERRERNEMH
15 B B £ 26(a) ©

MR2011FE12A318 - B &
FESRERRAREREE
(B R EBR B 45) M A B HB
& 5% B A R 208,126,000
T BB AARE
1,944,000 7T » I £ % Hi 5
£ OR B A FE U 3k TR B 4
MHBEOLBNEZRRP
B -

BESREWAEEKRZER
&
EHRESEKBARERE
BRRERLEAEFEER
PIBR - MEE AN KBS IR
[B] /Y # & T £ 55 Al 4 Bl
o ELERT  RmEEBKX
EENRE D EWR&ER
S (R EEEE16)6) ©

FR-RERBEHOT :

2011 2010

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARETT

At 1 January ®n1A1H8 2,619 1,831
Impairment loss (reversed)/ (B#E[E) BEER

recognised VERIER=ES (1,757) 788

At 31 December MW12A31H 862 2,619
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17

18

19

Trade and Other Receivables (Continued) 17 ESZRHEMERIE @
(b) The Company (b) &2 F

The balance as at 31 December 2011 mainly represents N20I1FE12A3T NS T B

amount due from a subsidiary. The amount is unsecured, SFEW — KB AT FRIA - 2%

interest-free and had no fixed repayment terms. HAEERE 2B MNEBTER
Pledged Deposits 18 EEHEFER
Bank deposits have been pledged as security for bills payable (see BT ETFERENZEERTEIT
note 21). The pledged deposits are expected to be released within (BHfizEot) - E B FBEI N 121E
12 months. B AR -
Cash and Cash Equivalents 19 BERESTEEY
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (@ BERBRESEEYWHIUT

IHEAR:
The Group The Company
rEE AT
At 31 December
M12A318
2011 2010 2011 2010

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARBTT AR®TR ARETE

Cash at bank andinhand 71 % &
FHERS® 635,617 83,827 442,893 —
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19 Cash and Cash Equivalents (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash

generated from operations:

THHE IR

19 BEeRBEEEBY @)
b) BRFEA R HELERBIR

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31BLLEE

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®B T ARETFTT
Profit before income tax RR FiT 158 i 50 F 8
— from continuing operations —RASERKREET 315,668 108,755
— from discontinued operations —RERIEEEER — 4,774
Adjustments for: TP SIEIEL AR -
— Depreciation — I E 5,969 4,337
— Amortisation of intangible —EEEENRER
assets and lease GiEheap: e
prepayments 350 140
— Gain on disposal of property, plant —HEVE BEK
and agjpment = W (67) —
— Finance costs — B IS AR 1,544 8,395
— Interest income — financial institutions  — F| 8 4f A — & Bt (1,074) 417)
— (Reversal)/recognition of — B RNFBEEX
impairment losses for (@), R
trade eceivables (1,757) 788
— Equity-settled share-based — AR EE ARG
payments =t 243 =
320,876 126,772
Changes in working capital EEESEH
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FE0Em R (48,685) 64,529
Decrease/(increase) in trade B 5 W3 & E i E U 3R
and other receivables B, () 52,953 (145,310)
Decrease in amount due FE W E B IR R D
from directors — 12,109
Increase in trade and other payables 2 5 N H th FE 1~ 2R3 0 20,174 57,992
Cash generated from operations KEMBES 345,318 116,092
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20 Bank Loans

20 SRITEX

The amounts of banking facilities and the utilisation at each end of REREHRRBEITEELRELERIS

the reporting period are set out as follows:

MBI -
At 31 December
MA12831H
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR ARETT

Facility amount

EEE® 300,000 444,000

Utilised facility amount in respect of:

MRS RESAH

EESH:
— Bank loans —RITEX — 98,800
— Bills payable (note 21) — BN RE (M FE21) 62,259 77,306
62,259 176,106
21 Trade and Other Payables 21 ESZRHMEMNR
(@) The Group (@ &£&f
At 31 December
M12831H

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARET T
Trade payables B 2 ENR 20,771 12,127
Bills payable BN R 62,259 77,306
Receipts in advance T8 W3k 3,344 4,293
Other payables and accruals HithEN R R EFER 63,403 31,834
Amount due to related parties JE < BE Bk 5 3R IE - 3,406
149,777 128,966
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(BREBHEBN  HUAREKSTR)
21 Trade and Other Payables (Continued) 21 BES R HMEMSRK@
(@) The Group (Continued) (@ AE£BE @
Bills payable as at 31 December 2011 and 2010 were 7K20114F K2010F12 A31H &
secured by pledged bank deposits as disclosed in note 18. FENMZEERD NG RIREITERIER
P ORBERMEE18) ©
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled FMEZE S NEMENRIBEN —
or recognised as income within one year or are repayable on FERNENERASRATIZEK
demand. o
The amounts due to related parties were unsecured, interest- FENEE A RIEASEEIF . £ 8
free and had no fixed repayment terms. MKEETEIEDE -
Included in trade and other payables are trade and bills RESREMENTR B HE
payable with the following ageing analysis as of the end of the NMRRENEERREERNE
reporting period: BRoMmT
At 31 December
M2A31H
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT
Within 1 month 1@ A A 27,702 9,003
More than 1 month but within 3 months ~ 11& A LA F{B3{@ A A 38,216 7,675
More than 3 months but within 6 months ~ 31& A LA F{B6{& A A 16,633 71,728
More than 6 months 61E A LA £ 479 1,027
83,030 89,433
(b) The Company (b) 227 F]

The amount represents accrual expenses, and is expected to
be settled within one year.

ZEREREAER BHSRK—
FALN -
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22 Employee Retirement Benefits

Defined contribution retirement plans

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC,
the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”) organised
by the PRC municipal government authorities whereby the Group is
required to make contributions to the Schemes at the rates of 18%
to 20% of the eligible employees’ salaries. The local government
authorities are responsible for the entire pension obligations
payable to retired employees.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and not previously
covered by the defined benefit retirement plan. The MPF scheme is
a defined contribution retirement scheme administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the Group and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$20,000. Contributions to the
scheme vest immediately.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of
pension benefits associated with the Schemes beyond the annual
contributions described above.

22

BERKER

REMRFERNREE

RIBEFEMEES THAURER  KN&
BEFBEOKE R F 2 Em S EH K
FiT 4 B8 & % B9 51 E £ BOR K48 A A
() - N"EELEARS
B1%E B ¥ 2 1918% £20% [ 5t &
R BEMRTHEA R B AE BN ERK
BEWMEEZEE-

AEENREFSRFIELESE
KOl AXEARERFBEERIAEEN R AR
B B@AFTRSEREHEFRAK
EIMTEREER L —HRIEAES
e ((aEestdEll)-aEesté A
—EEBUIRTAETENRTHIE
Ket&El - BERESTE AEE R
HEES B AKREES BB KAB%
mMefBl R oA ABEBKRAN
20,0008 7T o 5T EI R BN RS -

Br bt R RSN AR B R
BB ERERAAFKEAENS L
BHEMEARME-
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23 Equity Settled Share-Based Transactions LRFEELLRGOGAEEY

The Company has two share option schemes namely, the Pre-IPO
Employee Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme”) and the Share Option Scheme, which were adopted on
23 November 2011.

On 23 November 2011, the Company granted options to subscribe
for an aggregate of 20,500,000 shares of the Company to its
directors, senior management, employees and distributors under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, being 80% of the initial public
offering price. No further option could be granted under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme prior to the 16 December 2011.

The Share Option Scheme shall remain in force for a period of 10
years ending on 23 November 2021. Pursuant to the Share Option
Scheme, the directors of the Company may invite, at their
discretion, eligible participants, including employees and directors
of any company in the Group, to take up options to subscribe for
shares of the Company to a maximum of 40,000,000 shares. The
exercise price of options under the Share Option Scheme shall be
determined by the board of directors at its absolute discretion but
in any event will not be less than the higher of:

()  the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date, which must
be a business day, of the date of grant;

(i) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five business days

immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(i)~ the nominal value of the Shares.

R5

ARATR2011E11 A23 B AR 18 B
S NEXAHBEERNEEE
BEE (TR MBS ERE
B REREE -

R2011F11 A283H AR AR E &
RAFREENEREFERNEES
BEREBAE EBEERSHEREA
EFEAXAAHABEEENS0%REA &L
20,500,000 % 72 A &) B {7 &9 i A% 4 -
R2011F12 A16 H Al - W E AR E 5 X
ARSI ERETS R LM EM
BN o

BREFEIENERBATF BEE
202111 A23H A IE - BIE B IR T
B ARREBARNBEEFEERR
HE(BEAESEETEMNAFNE
B K EE) 5 7] 5 % R i 40,000,000
AR A A B AR (0 B B AR A o BB AR B AT &)
THERETEEEHESEE2ED
BET HEBRBOMATEER T
ESE -

) HREBEREZBR(EAAREXA)N
R B WRERSIE RS KT
B

(i) BEREEBARESREABR
Fie B |ERMAIRDFH KT
B: R

(i) MR EIE -
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(BREEEBAI  HUAAREIITR)

23 Equity Settled Share-Based Transactions 23 UREGEEURGAEEN
(Continued) R 5 (#)
(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are as (@ REWBERRGEHEDT :
follows:
()  Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme () BXABEEESHERES
2
Options granted on 23 November 2011 MN2011E11 A2 EDN
i IR R
Number of Contractual
options Vesting life of
granted conditions options
ERBERE 8 IR R
A BB %RHY BHNEH
Options granted to directors: 6,460,000 Note (i) Note (i)
RTEFRERE - B 52 (i) Bt 5 )
Options granted to senior management: 3,400,000 Note (i) Note (i)
BETaREBENBKRE: Bt 5 () oEza()
Options granted to other employees: 8,640,000 Note (i) Note (i)
BT HAMES M ERE B 5 () B 5 )
Options granted to distributors: 2,000,000 Note (i) Note (i)
BT —REHEEHBRE Bt 5 () oz ()
20,500,000

Note ():  These options are exercisable during the period commencing MaG): 2 EEBREATR B BHE

from the day immediately following the expiry of the one year 201112416 R ([ £ A

period after 16 December 2011 (the “Listing Date”), and MD#®-—FHHERZA

ending on the day falling five years after the 23 November B & =2011411 4234

2011 (the “Granted Date”), during which, (a) up to 30% (T |/E|7§,qj) CEEaL)

options granted may be exercised on or prior to the end of the 5 Fj z\] T ' %t 3 n

second year after the Listing Date; (b) subject to (a), up to (a) 2 2 30% ) E 1% it i B

60% onti . ) EAIREMBEEE=-F

o options granted may be exercised on or prior to the end EERZNTE: OES

of ;hithlrlij yial' afctfr the fL|st|ng Da;e; and (,C) Zubj§ctttot:1a) 60% H B 48 1 56 [ 4 7T 3

an ‘( ),fahou§an |nglop |on‘s m?ylll e exsr(;:si pnq (o} 3 L HAMEESFERE

expiry of the said exercise period, failing which the options wi % > ‘g‘ﬁ ﬁ % (B Z @ 8

lapse and no longer be exercisable. B): RQFTAE M ETER

ﬁ%ﬂ%&TﬁAﬁw 1T B e

AT (VB (a) K (b) B9 43

B MARETE ZEB
P& A 5 K R B A R ATE
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(REEEBAIN  HUAREZIR)

23 Equity Settled Share-Based Transactions
(Continued)

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are as
follows: (Continued)

(i)  Share Option Scheme
At 31 December 2011, no options had been granted
under the Share Option Scheme.

(b) The number and weighted average exercise
price of share options are as follows:

23

g%ﬁﬁ%u%ﬁ%%ﬁm
R 5 (1)

(@ REMWEKXRGEHDT
()

@iy EERESE
R2011E12 A31 8 #f &
1B B B8 AR 5T 8 I A A
BB A% -

(b) EBARFEAY R E R f0#E ¥ 1T
ITREEMT :

Year ended 31 December 2011
HBZ2011F12A31BLLEE

Weighted Number of

average options

exercise price ’000

g BREHE

TEE T 4

Granted during the period HANBE®E HK$1.28 20,500
1288 7T

Outstanding at the end of the period P ERR M AR 1T 20,500

Exercisable at the end of the period RHEIRA] F17(F -

The options outstanding at 31 December 2011 had an
exercise price of HK$1.28 and a weighted remaining
contractual life of 4.9 years.

R2011E12 A31H » MARTES
BRENITFEEAE1.288 T I
EFRGENFIRBLIF -
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(BREEEBAI  HUAAREIITR)

23 Equity Settled Share-Based Transactions 23
(Continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share
options granted is measured based on a binomial lattice
model. The contractual life of the share option is used as an
input into this model. Expectations of early exercise are
incorporated into the binomial lattice model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions

Fair value at measurement date
RETEBNAREE

Share price
AR 15 18 1%

Exercise price

1TIE(E

Expected volatility
8 HA K 8

Expected option life

BREBESFS

Expected dividends
TEHA AR B

Risk-free interest rate
B R A X

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life of
the share options), adjusted for any expected changes to
future volatility based on publicly available information.
Expected dividends are based on historical dividends.
Changes in the subjective input assumptions could materially
affect the fair value estimate.

b2

Y

><\

Yl

EEF”uWﬁ%EEM
4=

&)
BRENDAEERRBRR

Sh 34 T IR U B SO I S AR 7%
MAREE H2EEROBR
B AR BEFE  IRHBER
BORXAEBEEMGHER —EAME
EAE BRENSOFEHT
RAREX - RETENERS
FAZEAREBRR -

—

BRENDABERRR

HK$12,439,818
12,439,8187% JT

HK$1.60
1.60/8 7T

HK$1.28
1.288 7T

51.40%
51.40%

5 years

54

5.06%
5.06%

0.67%
0.67%

8 HA R 18 LA BE SR 1R (AR 1% B AX
BOMETFARBKFHRAE) B
EE URERNAARAESHE
8 BUR ROR 18 B (E R FE A 21
TUAFE - FHBREAELEE
7%% cFTERAETBARAREKE
""""" EPRHAABEBAELEXN

S 4,
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(REEEBAIN  HUAREZIR)

24 Income Tax in the Consolidated Statement of

Financial Position

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement

24 HMEMBRRARPHFAER

(a

RS B B AR R 3Rk P Y BD

of financial position represents: I :
At 31 December
M12831H
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARETTT
Provision for PRC income tax m B BT 15 B B 16,808 8,291

(b) Deferred tax assets recognised:

The components of deferred tax assets recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position and the

b) CRAEEHEEE
PR & BRSO 5% R SR OB AT

BEAEMARES RENEDE

movements during the year are as follows: N
Provision of
impairment  Provision for
of trade impairment
receivables of inventories Accruals Total
=N AL EN FERE
AERE B’E EER et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETFIT ARBTFT ARETT ARETT
Deferred tax arising from: 3E %E i I8 /= 4
At 1 January 2010 R2010F1 A1 H 229 66 2,984 3,279
Credited to profit or loss HABSE 98 197 1,703 1,998
At 31 December 2010 R2010F12 A31H 327 263 4,687 5,277
(Charged)/credited to RiEZEK
profit or loss (f0BR),FEA 219) 8 2,791 2,580
At 31 December 2011 7R2011F12 H31H 108 271 7,478 7,857

(c) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

As at 31 December 2011, temporary differences relating to
the undistributed profits of the Group’s wholly owned
subsidiary in the mainland China amounted to
RMB263,297,000. Deferred tax liabilities of RMB13,165,000
have not been recognised in respect of the withholding tax
that would be payable on the distribution of these retained
profits, as the Company controls the dividend policy of the
subsidiary in the mainland China and the Directors have
determined that these profits are not likely to be distributed in
the foreseeable future.

(c)

W ARERNIELER AR E

MR2011F12 A31H » BEAREERE
FREAENZENBARNERD
AR A AN R EEE AR
¥ 263,297,000 7T ° IEILFHIB & &
A R #13,165,000 7T I £ 5t 1
KZERBFEREMNOBENH
EITHER RARARDRESF
Bl RBENE AT MR SR M
EECETZEFBEYRAK
PRATBEEEHEITHIR ©
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(B& BIAAREESIR)

25 Capital, Reserves and Dividends

= EEHAIN

25 BX - fEERkKRE

(@ Movements in the components of equity (@) EZAEANBLWEE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances ANEBRNGEEDZZERD 25
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set VRHREHMEEHERNGEE#E
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. HEBRK AQNTRNEMA Y B
Details of the changes in the Company’s individual HY &= 4 oK B RE 25 (3 B 26 0 iy =
components of equity between the date of incorporation and HIEHEHYMT -
the end of the year are set below:
The Company AN
Share-based
Share Exchange compensation Accumulated
Share capital premium reserve reserve loss Total
BRGHEE
R & & 17 % 8 EiffE NEEAE 2 EE @t
(note 25(c))  (note 25(d)(i)) (note 25(d)(iv)) (note 25(d)(vi))
(KraEas(c)) (RaFasd)i)) (FiaF2sd)iv) (B aF25(d)vi)
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
fzE ARBTT ARETR ARBTT AR%TR ARBTT ARBTR
At 2 September 2010 201049 A28
(date of Incorporation)  (FEfALSZ BE)  25(c)() 1 — — - — 1
Total comprehensive  HIN 2 E Nz A%
income for the period - — — = (73) (73)
At 31 December 2010 A2010F 12 A31H
and 1 January 2011 &2011%1A18 1 - = - (73) (72)
Shares issued for EHREBETRN
reorganisation 25(0)() 1 - - - - 1
Capitalisation issue BER(ET 25(c)(i) 9,768 (9,768) = = = =
Shares issued under  RIEAREE
public offering, net of ~ Z1TAL(H
issuing expenses MBBITHZ 25(c)il 3,257 485,318 - = = 488,575
Total comprehensive ~ FRN 2 E Rz A%
income for the year - - (638) - (17,863) (18,501)
Equity-settled EREEN
share-based BB A7 S F
payments 25(d)(vi) - - - 243 - 243
At 31 December 2011 72011412 531H 13,027 475,550 (638) 243 (17,936) 470,246
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25 Capital, Reserves and Dividends (Continued) 25 EX - RERERE @
(b) Dividends b) BE
Dividends declared attributable to the year: AFEETROKSE :
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T AREBTT
Dividends declared and paid during FREIR LRSS
the year 151,705 —
Dividend proposed after the end of the R & B R 18 #RR AR B
reporting period of HK8.4 cents FR%8.47 1
(equivalent to approximately (HHERHOARKe8D)
RMB6.8 cents) per share 108,800 =
260,505 =

Dividends declared and paid during the year represent
dividends declared by Haosha Industry prior to the listing of
shares of the Company. The rate of dividend per share is not
presented for these dividends as it is not indicative of the rate
at which future dividends will be declared.

The dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period
has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the
reporting period.

FAERIMENOREEEDE
ERA QAR Ap £ AT E KA IR
BT ERZEFREZINERK
X - REEREI FRTARR
BREREEBEREXETEIR

& BR &R BUR &) i B 3 B X 3R
EHRERLSAE-
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(B> EHEAIN HAAREDIR)

25 Capital, Reserves and Dividends (Continued)

(c) Paid-in capital/share capital

Movements in the Company’s authorised share capital are as

25 EX - #HERKRE @

() EhER A
ARTEERABHMT -

follows:
Nominal value
Number of of ordinary
Par value shares shares
SREE BREEE ZEREE
Note HK$ ’000 HK$’000
B & BT T FHT
Authorised: EE
On 2 September 2010 H2010F9 A2 H (i) 0.01 38,000 380
At 31 December 2010 and ' 2010F 12 A31 H
1 January 2011 K20115F1 A1 8 0.01 38,000 380
Increase in share capital on A 201146 57 H
7 June 2011 P& 7 1% 40 (i) 0.01 9,962,000 99,620
At 31 December 2011 R2011E12A31H 0.01 10,000,000 100,000

Movements in the Company’s issued share capital are as

RABEEITRAZEHMT :

follows:
Number of Nominal value of
shares ordinary shares
RGEE EEREE
Note ’000 HK$’000 RMB’000
Bt 5% T i THERT ARBTT
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
On 2 September 2010 MR2010F9 H2H 0] 100 1 1
Issue of shares upon EHEEITRMD
reorganisation (i) 100 1 1
Capitalisation issue &AL BT (ii) 1,199,800 11,998 9,768
Issue of shares under BIRELE R AR
placing and BEBRTRG
public offering (iii) 400,000 4,000 3,257
At 31 December 2011 R2011F12 A31 H 1,600,000 16,000 13,027
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(BmBHEAIN

BIAAREESIR)

25 Capital, Reserves and Dividends (Continued)

(c) Paid-in capital/share capital (Continued)

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
one vote per share at meeting of the Company. All ordinary
shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual
assets.

(i)

Capitalisation upon incorporation/reorganisation

On 2 September 2010, the Company was incorporated
with authorised share capital of HK$380,000 divided
into 38,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each and issued
100,000 shares, credited as fully paid.

On 7 June 2011, the authorised share capital of the
Company was increased from HK$380,000 divided into
38,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each to HK$
100,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000 shares of
HK$0.01 each by the creation of 9,962,000,000 shares
of HK$0.01 each.

On 14 January 2011, in connection with the
reorganisation, Hosa Group, acquired 75% and 25%
equity interest in Haosha Industry from Haosha
International (H.K.) Ltd. and Haosha Garments for
consideration of newly issued 100,000 shares of the
Company and RMB30,375,000.

25 EX - #ERKRE @

BWER KA @

EBRFA AR EEERTEEIR
MRS YAIEARARFAE L&
FAE-—BREOE-—R -HRAR
AIMRBREE MMBEAKRSAE
BREHS -

(c)

(i)

MR, EHEEBETE
¥iN

R201149 A2H » AN A AlFEfHR
RSz EURFERR 7N 4 380,000
7 JC » 9 /438,000,000 % &
A E(EO0.01/ B TH i » I
% 77100,000 % A BR 71| /& £
R -

R2011E6A7H - AR AIHE
TE A% 7K 8 12 35 9,962,000,000
B & B% m 20.017% T &
i% 1+ F380,000/8 JT( %
7% 38,000,000 % f% m
BHOOIB TH R M) B E
100,000,000% 7t( 2o A
10,000,000,000 }& & B% m &
0.01 B LW IRD) ©

MN201151 A148 » giEHA
mE AP EERED B
(BB)BERARIRESLH
KRB LD T HET75% K 25%
B HEAA QA B
77100,0008% % 15 & A R #&
30,375,000 7T °
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(B=BHEAIN

BAARESIR)

25 Capital, Reserves and Dividends (Continued)

(c) Paid-in capital/share capital (Continued)

(ii)

(i)

Capitalisation issue

Pursuant to the written resolution on 23 November
2011, the Company allotted and issued 1,199,800,000
shares of HK$0.01 each to the shareholders whose
names were on the register of member of the Company
as of the close of business on 9 December 2011 in
proportion to their then existing shareholdings. This
resolution was conditional on the share premium
account being credited as a result of the Company’s
public offering and pursuant to the written resolution;
the existing issued shares shall rank pari passu in all
respects.

Shares issued under placing and public offering

On 16 December 2011, the Company issued
400,000,000 shares with a par value of HK$0.01 each,
at a price of HK$1.6 per share by way of an initial public
offering (“the Offering”). Net proceeds from the Offering
amounted to RMB488,575,000 (after offsetting listing
expenses of RMB32,513,000).

Paid-in capital

The paid-in capital in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2010 represented
the paid-in capital of Haosha Industry.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, Haosha
Industry increased its paid-in capital by
RMB60,661,000.

25 EX - REERE @
) BRER A& @)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

B AR #1T

1B ¥ 2011 F11 523 H /Y
EERAZER A2aRRB
201112 AOH & ¥ m R 45
RE R AR A KRR M
R REEEERFAERN
UNGIN V=B o R S8
771,199,800,000 f% & fi% E 1B
0.O1BTILHRG - RARER
BARFEERMDBEERAARAD T
MARBEMRGER 7
AEE - MBEAEMmRE
X RECDHTROEER
EFHEZHERSHMAL -

REGRER ABBER]T
% 13

® 2011 & 12 A 16 B
ARBEBBEHXARE
E(BENDHFA &E
B B 19 1.678 T &9 1B 1% %%
7 400,000,000 A% B m
BOOIB LW (- B &
FTERBEFHEEARK
488,575,000t (AL 8 £
F &z AR #32,513,0007T) °

BIRE R

R2010F 12 A31H W& A&
MBERRARANERE X
HEDBENBEWRER -

#H E2010FE12 A31 8 1k 5
B - EPBEEBEBTWER
#n A R #60,661,0007T °
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(BmBHEAIN

BIAAREESIR)

25 Capital, Reserves and Dividends (Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
share premium account of the Company may be
applied for payment of distributions or dividends to
shareholders provided that immediately following the
date on which the distribution or dividend is proposed
to be paid, the Company is able to pay its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve in the consolidated statements of
financial position as at 31 December 2010 and 2011
represented exchange differences and the excess of
value of assets injected to Haosha Industry by the
investors, which was accounted for in equity under
capital reserve.

Statutory reserve

PRC statutory reserves were established in accordance
with the relevant PRC rules and regulations and the
articles of association of the Company’s subsidiary
established in the PRC. Transfers to the reserves were
approved by the respective boards of directors.

According to the Articles of Association of Haosha
Industry, the entity is required to transfer part of its net
profits (after offsetting prior year losses), as determined
under the approval by the respective boards of
directors, to statutory general reserve. For the years
ended 31 December 2010 and 2011, appropriations
were made by Haosha Industry to the general reserve
at 10% of its profit after taxation determined under the
PRC accounting rules and regulations.

(i)

(ii)

(i)

25 EX - #ERKRE @
d HEMXEREW®

grpi ]
REREHRERENE AR
& B B 17 O (B Bk A SR
DIRHEB TR - HEEEE
ERERIRN 2RSS A
2% ARARENRBEER
BEFEERIRER -

BARFEE

MR 20104 K 2011412 A 31
H R0 BRAKRANE
AEBEIMNEZERIEE
EEIANEDPEEZEZRE
EEBENND 2528
ARY BEZPHE R
1 o

ETE B
FBUXRE & IR IR
B R A RORBR A R AR
EIRSEEE 2 AvA: = NC]
MARB E R A RIER L © AR
BRNEBRDESESFTSH]
/e °

BEEPEENHEHBER
A ZERBOAERAR
BEESeMILEETH
HomF K EBTEFER
BRIZEEE —MEH-#H
F£2010F & 2011412 A 31
BIEFE AP EEHFER
BRBEERAEERE
TE R E BR B R ADE B9 10%
BN — R -
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(B=BHEAIN

BAARESIR)

25 Capital, Reserves and Dividends (Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iv)

(vi)

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve of the Group comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of operations outside the
mainland China which are dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies as set out in note 1(s).

Other reserve
The other reserve as at 31 December 2011 comprises
the following:

— the difference of RMB91,124,000 represents 75%
of the historical carrying value of paid-in capital of
Haosha Industry amounting RMB91,125,000
acquired over the nominal value of the shares
issued by the Company amounting HK$1,000 (RMB
equivalent of approximately RMB1,000) as
consideration (see note 25(c)(i); and

—  the difference of HK$9,999 (RMB equivalent of
approximately RMB8,000) between the historical
carrying value of entire paid-in capital of Hosa
Group amounting to HK$10,000 and the
consideration of HK$1 acquired by Hosa
Investment.

Share-based compensation reserve

Share-based compensation reserve represents the fair
value of share options granted to certain directors,
senior managements, employees and distributors of the
Group.

25 EX - #HERKRE @
(d FEMXEREN@

(iv)

v)

(vi)

BE 5 fak 18
AEEMNEXFEBRR
8P B R IR AN R A B
TR PTE LT A INE
EH O ZEERRBWE
1) B P M & 5T R T A B
=

Hi %
R2011F12 31 H & & 1B
RBEEETISIE:

— = AR®1,124,000
TLIEFT BB R ) ' %
BEWEAFELE®R
BEW5% A B ARE
91,125,000 T 8 H A 2
AIBITIEAHENR
3 T {8 & #1,0007% 7T
(NRBESEHARE
1,0007T) K 2B 2 (R, FF
FE2500)0) : &

— BV EERZHEWRE
ANFE S BR®EE AR
10,0007 Jt £ & 7 %
BEWENEE1ETH
= 589,099 L (A B
B 4 AR 8,000
JL) °

URHHEENHERE
A REENBERE
EAKEETESZ RME
BAE BERDHBER
MERERN AR EE-
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(BmBHEAIN

BIAAREESIR)

25 Capital, Reserves and Dividends (Continued)

(e) Distributable reserves

(f)

The aggregate amount of distributable reserves (including
share premium and retained earnings) of the Company as at
31 December 2011 was HK$562,558,000.

The distributable reserves of the Group as at 31 December
2010 represented Haosha Industry’s retained earnings of
RMB157,406,000.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for its shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access
to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholders returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.

25 EX - #ERKRE @
() AT IR S

KN A R20114F 12318 & 7]
HoRBHELEBE(BERD RE
AR EB F| ) A562,558,0005 7T °

K& B R2010612A31 B &9 7]

Ko kFEEEREESE

FJE A K # 157,406,000 7T °

(Hh BEXEE

AEEEREARNZBEZBETIR

EAREEERFELSE

Bz S 2 AR 1 2 K EE fm RE
BRAAEKRARGHE  #E
R I L At ) 55 4 B R

(o] 3 Ko 48 A

AEEER N E Y EAREE
TRARER  KERSKRERED
WIFR T A BEFHBE 2 B = 8 BROK
TR AR B9 E AR SR A 4 e
RRE 2 BB F & I FEEL
B B B B AR IRBEE R

B o
=

ZANYNCTDNE RN NS S YN

SNERIE AN B AN B K -
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(BREEEBAI  HUAAREIITR)

26 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group’s
exposure to these risks and the financial risk management policies
and practices used by the Group to manage these risks are
described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables. Management has a credit policy in place
and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are generally due within 90 days from the date of
billing. The Group will also obtain deposits from customers
prior to delivery of goods when credit limits granted are
temporarily exceeded.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than the
industry or country in which the customers operate and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of the reporting period, 19% (2010:
11%) and 47% (2010: 35%) of the total trade and other
receivables was due from the Group’s largest customer and
the five largest customers respectively within the business
segment.

26 MBEREERAAEBE

FEE RBEEL MXRINERBR
AEBNAEEBBETEL - AK
BEHZEER MAKERANLE
BRER R B EREEBRRE
PIR T XX H 5 o

(@ FERK

AEENEERRIZREES
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(BmBHEAIN

BIAAREESIR)

26 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the consolidated
statements of financial position after deducting any
impairment allowance.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in note 17.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval by the
Company’s board when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer terms.

Interest rate risk

The Group does not have significant exposure to interest rate
risk as it does not expect interest rate fluctuation would have
significant impact to the fair value or cash flows of its cash
and bank deposits held as at 31 December 2011. The Group
has no bank borrowings as at 31 December 2011.

26
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BAARESIR)

26 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values
(Continued)

(d) Currency risk

(e)

As the Group’s principal activities are carried out in the PRC,
the Group’s transactions are mainly denominated in
Renminbi, which is not freely convertible into foreign
currencies. All foreign exchange transactions involving
Renminbi must take place through the People’s Bank of
China or other institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign
exchange. The exchange rates adopted for the foreign
exchange transactions are the rates of exchange quoted by
the People’s Bank of China that are determined largely by
supply and demand.

As at 31 December 2010 and 2011, cash at bank that were
placed with banks in the PRC amounted to RMB82,489,000
and RMB191,568,000 respectively. Remittance of funds out
of the PRC is subject to the exchange restrictions imposed
by the PRC government.

The Group had no significant foreign exchange exposure as
at 31 December 2011, as the Group substantially ceased its
export activities.

Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments are
carried at amounts not materially different from their fair
values as at 31 December 2010 and 2011. The carrying
values of the Group’s financial instruments approximate their
fair values because of the short maturities of these
instruments.
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(BmBHEAN

BIAAREESIR)

27 Commitments

(@)

The Group and the Company have no capital commitments
outstanding at 31 December 2010 and 2011.

At 31 December 2011, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable
as follows:

27 EiE

(@)

(b)

AN & B 7HR20104F K2011412 A
31 B W EA M KREEREE ARHEE-

R2011E12 8318 IBRET A #
HELHERNMARKERS
@ mT

The Group
rEE
At 31 December

M12H31H
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBT T
Within 1 year 1F R 2,790 1,833
After 1 year but within 5 years 1FBESFR 1,286 2,749
4,076 4,582

During the year ended 31 December 2010 and 2011, the
Group is the lessee in respect of items of offices in Hong
Kong and Beijing held under operating leases. The leases
typically run for an initial period of one to five years, with an
option to renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated.
None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

HZE2010F K201 12 A31H 1k
FE -AEEAKEHETHF
MEBRIERBEAEIEF KK
A -HE—WRYUILEFE—FR
FOAEENERMAGRRE TR
EEEHE -HEMERSXE
e -
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(BRBEEBAIN  HUAAREDTR)

28 Material Related Party Transactions 28 ERBABAERS

In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in M 75 B1 75 3R 3= H A0 20 9 B 36 5B B 8 B

the financial statements, the Group entered into the following FERIIN KREBEEFZTHEKNE

material related party transactions. tH 5

During the year, the directors are of the view that the following are ERN BERAUTIAEEBEE

related parties of the companies now comprising the Group: TEATIHEET

Name of party Relationship

B&HAB 2RES

Haosha Garments* 55% and 25% owned by Mr. Shi Hongliu and

Mr. Shi Hongyan respectively
ED BR 5 Al B 5 AL 5 A KR BB IE R A
¥ 55 55% [ 25% fE &
Haosha Aiya (Beijing) Fitness Service Co., Ltd.* 50% and 50% owned by Mr. Shi Hongliu and
(“Beijing Aiya”) Mr. Shi Hongyan respectively
ELN AR R RBBER QA 3 Bl B M AR R o A % BE S fEE SE A
(MR HED) % 5 50% % 50% 1 2=
The English translation of the companies’ names are for reference only. The official * RRAIEEOEXHEREHRZ2E 2T AN
names of these companies are in Chinese. EXEBAPX -

(@) Key management personnel remuneration (@ EEEBAEEFMH
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, REBITEEBAENHFH(E
including amounts paid to the Company’s Directors as EW s ZEE N FARAE
disclosed in note 8 and certain of the highest paid employees ENZIBEBUALHRTFIOMBEENS
as disclosed in note 9, is as follows: NFEFHESHFHNEENZE)

m
Year ended 31 December
HZ12831 HIEEE
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBTFT
Short-term employee benefits HHEERF 5,497 2,639
Equity settled share-based payments LA RE 25 45 8 DA B 1 S A+ 117 —
Contributions to defined contribution AT TR ARG 2K
retirement plans 412 427
6,026 3,066
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (note 5(b)). BEFEWE T ATE TRA R (K
F5(D)) e
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(BmBHEAN

BIAAREESIR)

28 Material Related Party Transactions (Continued)

29

(b) Transactions with related party

(c)

28 EXBEBHAIRS @)
(b)) HEBINRS

Year ended 31 December

BZ12831 HILEE
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T
Purchases of products BE sz oA
— Haosha Garments —E BRI 1,421 1,208
Receiving processing services BERZE NI R
— Haosha Garments — &S BIX 22,354 21,241
Purchases of equipment BERE
— Haosha Garments —EDRIX 93 —
Leases from HESs
— Haosha Garments —EDBIK 2 981
Leases equipments to i ff\ T
— Haosha Garments D BLR 103 1,175
Short-term advances to related parties mAE BB TIRERN
of the Group SR EAE
— Beijing Aiya (all settled before — It RN HE(2HRED
31 Decemér 2011) E/\2011¢12ﬁ] 31H
B 4558) 2,000 47,070

Balance with related party

As at the end of the reporting period, trade balance due to
Haosha Garments amounted to RMB2,878,000 (2010: RMB
nil). The amount to Haosha Garments is unsecured, interest

free and is expected to be paid within one year.

Immediate and Ultimate Controlling Party

At 31 December 2011, the Directors consider the immediate and
ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Ho Born Investment
Holdings Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.
This entity does not produce financial statements available for

public use.
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(BRBEEBAIN  HUAAREDTR)

30 Possible Impact of Amendments, New 30
Standards and Interpretations Issued but not
yet Effective for the Year Ended 31 December
2011

Up to the date of issue of this report, the IASB has issued a number
of amendments, new standards and interpretations which are not
yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2011 and which have
not been adopted in preparing the financial statements.

BZ2011F12A31HLLE
ECEMERERNIEE -
A EARRENTRESE

EEARENBELH BB E8)
ZESERMZIEEZE2011F12 A 31
BIEFE R ARERNIEET - FHETER
TR RE - e BB 75 R 3% R N0 A B AR
ZEEE] A EAIRRE -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUTBEHSz#%
RN ETrAEEN

Amendments to IAS 12 Income taxes — Deferred tax:
Recovery of underlying assets

1 January 2012

SR ERF12RNEET  FER - BEHRE  WOHBEE 20121 A1H
Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements 1 July 2012
— Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income
B G EAE1RNEET MERRN2Y - Ht2EKFEENZT] 201267 A1H

IFRS 9 Financial instruments (2009)
B PR B 75 R 5 ZE R 5 9 5% & F T B (20094 )

IFRS 9 Financial instruments (2010)
B B B 7 R 5 A BIZB 9 5% & @ T A (20104)
IFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements

BIFR B 75 R 5 ZE RS2 1058 A MBERER

IFRS 13 Fair value measurement

B0 % B 75 o o 2 RI S5 13 5% NABENE

IAS 27 Separate financial statements (2011)
B PR & 5t £ R 27 5% B3 Bt ¥k (2011 4F)
Revised IAS 19 Employee benefits

RETBERE S ERFE195% EEET

1 January 2013
201341 A1 H

1 January 2013
20131 H1H

1 January 2013
2013%F1 A1 H

1 January 2013
20131 H1H

1 January 2013
2013%F1H1H

1 January 2013
20131 H1H
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(=B HEHIN HAARETIR)

30 Possible Impact of Amendments, New
Standards and Interpretations Issued but not
yet Effective for the Year Ended 31 December

2011 (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
new standards and new
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial application.
So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to
result in material impact to the Group’s results of operations and

impact of these amendments,

financial position.
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